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Listing Department, Corporate Relationship Department 
National Stock Exchange ofIndia Linaitedl BSE Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 1" Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
Bandra Dalal 

Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting held on January 23,2024 

SirlMadam, 

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 30 read with Schedule III of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations 2015, this is to inform that the Board of Directors ofREC Limited in 
its meeting held on January 23, 2024, inter-alia considered and approved the following: 

I. Unaudited financial results (standalone & consolidated) of the Company for the 
quarter and period ended December 31, 2023, which have been reviewed by the 
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their 
meetings held on January 23, 2024. The said financial results have been subjected to 
Limited Review by Mis. Kailash Chand Jain & Co., and Mis. SCV & Co. LLP, 
Statutory Auditors of the Company. A copy of Financial Results and Limited 
Review Report thereof, are enclosed herewith as Annexure-I. 

2. Special Purpose Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the 
period ended December 31, 2023, which have been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their 
meetings held on January 23, 2024. The same has been prepared for the purpose of 
inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the 
company and its holding company. A copy of Special Purpose Financial Statements 
and LinUted Review Report thereof, are also enclosed herewith as Annexure-I . 

3. Sale and transfer of the entire shareholding of six subsidiaries, presently held by 
REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited (RECPDCL), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of REC Limited to the successful bidders selected through Tariff Based 
Competitive Bidding process. The other requisite details are attached herewith as 
Annexure-2. 

Regional Office. Bengaluru. Bhopal. Bhubaneswar, Chennai, Oehradun, Guwahati, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Jammu, Kolkata, 

Lucknow, Mumbai. Panch kula, Patna, Raipur, Ranchi, Shimla, Thiruvananthapuram & Vijaywada 

Slate OffIces . Vadodara, Varanasi 

Training Centre : REC Institute of Power Management & Training (RECIPMT), Hyderabad 



4. Incorporation of project-specific special purpose vehicle, as wholly owned 
subsidiary of REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited (a wholly owned 
subsidiary of REC Limited), for selection of successful bidder as Transmission 
Service Provider (TSP) for Eastern Region Expansion Scheme- XXXIX project 
allocated by Ministry of Power, Government of India through tariff based 
competitive bidding process. 

The Board meeting commenced at 11.00 a.m. and concluded at 2.00 p.m. 

~ ~ 1J1i"1<t5lil ~~~I This is for your kind information. 



, 
KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-110092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants 

B-41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhi-110017. 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for 

the quarter ended December 31, 2023 and year-to-date results for the period from April 

01, 2023 to December 31, 2023 of REC Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 and 

Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, as amended. 

The Board of Directors, 

REC Limited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lodi Road, 

New Delhi - 110003 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited standalone financial 

results of REC Limited ("the Company") for the quarter ended December 31, 2023 

and year-to-date results for the period from April 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023 

("the Statement"), being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of 

Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("listing Regulations"). 

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and 

approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance 

with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian 

Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") read with 

relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted 

in India. Our responsibility is to issue a conclusion on the statements based on our 

review. 

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on 



j 

the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statemerl t is free of 

material misstatement. A review of interim financial information consists of making 

inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting III atters, and 

applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substanti ally less in 

scope than an audit conducted in accordance with standards on au diting and 

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware 

of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 

express an audit opinion. 

4. Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come 

to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying stat:erilent of 

unaudited financial results, prepared in accordance with recogn ition and 

measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards 

Clnd AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as amended, read with relevant 

rules issued there under and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of 

Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the manner in which it is 

to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Other matters 

5. We did not review the unaudited standalone financial results of the Company for 

quarter ended December 31, 2022 and for the period from April 01, 2022 to 

December 31, 2022. These interim unaudited standalone financial results have been 

reviewed by other firms of Chartered Accountants who vide their reports dated 

January 30, 2023 expressed an unmodified conclusion on the unaudited standalone 

financial results of the Company for the quarter ended December 31, 2022 and for 

the period from April 01, 2022 to December 31, 2022. 

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

6. We did not audit the standalone financial statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023. These standalone financial statements have 

been audited by other firms of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated 

17th May 2023 expressed an unmodified opinion on the standalone financial results 

of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023. 



Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 1674.?1:-,. 
UDIN: 2 ~ It 7 %3 13K gF,~il;:Il:f-' ' 
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'" Dolhi-92 '* 
Place: Mumbai\ q IJ 

\~v ~1'"t5 
Date: January 23, 2024'~"" 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration:00023SN/NS00089 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-110092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants 

B-41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhi-110()17. 

Independent Auditor's Limited Review Report on the Unaudited Consolidated Financial 

Results for the quarter ended 31st December, 2023 and year-to-date results for the period 

from April 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023 of REC Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 and 

Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

as amended. 

The Board of Directors, 

REC Limited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lodi Road, 

New Delhi - 110003 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial 

results of REC Limited ("the Parent Company") and its subsidiary (the parent company 

and its subsidiary together referred to as "the Group")for the quarter ended 31 

December, 2023 and year-to-date results for the period from April 01, 2023 to December 

31, 2023 ("the Statement"), being submitted by the Company pursuant to the 

requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("listing Regulations"). 

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Parent Company's Management and 

approved by the Parent Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance 

with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting 

Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed under section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility 

is to express a conclusion on the statements based on our review. 

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review 

Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 

Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 

assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of 



• procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 

with standards on auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that 

we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

We also performed procedures in accordance with the Circular No. 

ClR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019 issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33(8) 

of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as 

amended, to the extent applicable. 

4. The statement includes result offollowingentities : 

1. Parent Company: 

REC limited 

2. Subsidiary: 

REC Power Development and Consultancy limited 

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 

above and based on review report of other, nothing has come to our attention that 

causes us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results, 

prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in the 

applicable Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, 

as amended, read with relevant rules issued there under and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed 

in terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the manner in which 

it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Other matters 

6. We did not review the interim financial results of the subsidiary included in the 

consolidated unaudited financial results, whose interim financial results reflect total 

revenue of 'I: 73.42 crores and 'I: 325.42 crores, total net profit after tax of 'I: 39.11 crores 

and 'I: 86.86 crores and total comprehensive income of 'I: 39.11 crores and 'I: 86.86 crores 

for the quarter and year to date ended 31st December, 2023 respectively, as considered 

in the consolidated unaudited financial results. These interim financial results have been 

reviewed by other auditor whose Report has been furnished to us by the Management 

and our conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the Report of the other auditor and 

the procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph 3 above. 

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 



, 
7. We did not review the unaudited consolidated financial results of the Company for 

quarter ended December 31, 2022 and for the period from April 01, 2022 1:0 December 

31, 2022. These interim unaudited consolidated financial results have been reviewed by 

other firms of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated January 30, 2023 

expressed an unmodified conclusion on the unaudited consolidated financial results of 

the Company for the quarter ended December 31, 2022 and for the period from April 01, 

2022 to December 31, 2022. 

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. These consolidated financial statements have been audited 

by other firms of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated 17th May 2023 

expressed an unmodified opinion on the consolidated financial results of the Company 

for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect ofthis matter. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 
...::;:;=::::,... 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN:2\.j167'153BK.gF~MJ701 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: January 23, 2024 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/N500089 

-& ~'b-
Name - Abhinav Khosla '"elf AccO"'<-

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN: 2..11 0 S 70 I v SKg Oc.~ 777'2-



REC Limited 
Registered Office· Core", SCOPE Complex. 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi ·110003, CJN: U0101DL1969GOI005095 

Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the quarter and period ended 31-12-2023 

A Inte~t income 

(loss) on fair value changes 
. Other Operating Income 

from Operation8 (A+B) 

2 

A Finance costs 
B Net translation! transaction exchange loss! (gain) 

C Fees and commission expense 

0 Impainnent on finandal instruments , Employee benefits expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 

I responsibility expenses 

H 
(A ton) 

3 
4 

5 

6 Income/(Lon) 
not be reclassified to profit or Ion 

Re-measurement gains!(!osses) on defined benefit plans 

. Tax impact on above 
Changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments measured at Fair 

Items that will be reclassified to profit or Ion 

~ Tax impact on above 

Otl\ercomprehensive IncomeJ(Loss) for the period (i+ii) 

7 Total comprehensive income for the period (5+6) 

8 Paid up equity share capital (Face Value no per sbare) 
9 Other equity (aa per audited balance sheet as at 3bt March) 
10 Basic &: Diluted earnings per equity share of t' 10 each (in t')~ 

For continuing operations (in t) 

For discontinued operations 

• Earning p.,. S/uu~ (EPS) is net annuaJisdfo' tuqumttTS and"mod mdtd. 

11,812.00 11,213.22 9,660.06 33,490.26 

132.04 179.78 119.56 536.27 

11,944.04 11,393.00 9,779.62 34,02653 

24.21 14.44 24.21 

53.13 54.64 62.61 

104.09 338.76 

37.61 182.94 506.63 

11,981.65 11,575.94 9,694.89 34,.533.16 

18.40 14.22 16.82 37.68 

12,000.05 11,590.16 9,711.71 34,510.84 

7,653.34 7,350.04 6,134.96 22.053.22 

80.99 207.91 106.62 

5.61 6.29 4.43 15.38 

55.85 

6336 50.23 

5.89 6.10 

87.03 20.44 

38.63 22.50 

7,885,80 6,152.75 

UI4.25 3,558.96 

873.33 741.36 634.56 2,404.85 

292.44 103.25 225.11 

1,033.80 680.88 2,629,96 

3,772.87 2,878.08 10.002.91 

1.05 4.78 

408.11 

415.39 

2,549.00 4,188.26 2,748.96 9,880.44 

2,633.22 2,633.22 2,633.22 2,633.22 

12.42 14.33 10.93 37.99 

12.42 

28,456.30 38,359.91 

385.39 476.33 

28,841.69 38,836.24 

24.34 39.34 

152.68 287.17 

76.08 45.31 

253.10 371.82 

29.094.79 39,208.06 

33.98 44.67 

29,128.77 39,252,73 

17,240.32 23,737.66 

1,144.25 1,114.04 

16.29 

434.56 114.91 

156.44 181.63 

17.84 24.09 

114.89 202.65 

81.57 122.69 

19,201.22 25,513.96 

9,927.55 13,738.77 

1,952.04 2,668.58 

10,(183.60 

2,633.22 

55,046.45 

30.59 41.86 



Notes 10 the Standalone financial results: 

1. The above standalone financial results of the Company were reviewed by the Audit COmmittee and approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on 23rd January, 2024. These 
results have been subject to limited review by the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

2. The standalone financial results have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 34 - 'interim Financial Reporting', 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as ~mended from time to time, and other account:ing principles generally accepted in 

India. 

3.(a) Provisioning on loan assets is based'on "ECL (Expected Credit Loss) methodology" under Ind-AS nonns, duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and upnn the report provided by an 
independent agency appointed by the Company, which also considers ratings by the Ministry of Power, as and when they are updated, for Distribution Companies (DISCOMs). This is further reviewed by 
mana&;ment overlays in certain accounts wherever necessary"considering the factors involved and also on account of aligning the provisions with the lead lender. Details are as follows: 

(tinC rores 
S.No. Partic:u.lars ~ at 31.12.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

Stage 1 &2 Stage 3 ToW Stage 1 &2 Stage 3 Tola] 
1. Loan assets 4,83,654.42 13,811.21 4,97,465.63 4,20,119.71 14,892.08 4,35,011.79 
2. ImpainTIent loss allowance (net of movements)" 3,380.74 9,723.89 13,104.63 3,744.24 10,519.51 14,263.75 

Provisionlnlt Coveralte ('Yo) (2/1) 0.70% 70.41% 2.63% 0.89% 70.64% 3.28% 

-In addItion. ~ 21.52 crores as at 31s1 December 2023 (~15.87 crores as at 31st March 2023) IS mamlalned towards Impairment allowance on Letter of Comfort. 

(b) During the quarter, three stressed assets have been resolved with an outstanding loan amounting to ~ 1,080.63 crores and after adjusting Expected Credit Loss (ECL) of '(' 531.50 crores lind r~veries of ~ 
580.61 aores, an amounl of:t' 31.48 crores has been written back. 

4. Subsequent to December 31, 2023, the Company has raised JPY 61.1 Billion in multiple tranches through EuroYen Green Bonds under its Global Medium-Tenn Note Programme. These bonds have been lisled 
exclusively on IPSC International Stock Exchanges, lndia INX and NSE IFSC in GlFfCity, Gandhinagar, Gujaral. The net prO«leds from bond issuance will be utilised towards eligible projects in line with the 

Company's Green Finance Framework. 

5. The Company's operation comprise of only one business segment - lending 10 power, logistic and infrastructure sector. Hence, there is no other reportable segement in terms of indian Accounting Standard 
(lod-AS) 108 "Operating Segments". 

6, The additional inlomtation as required under Regulation 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed as AnneXUf'e -A. 

1. Pursuant to Regulation 54 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the socured listed non-<:onvertible debt securities issued by the Company lind outstanding as at 31st 
December, 2023 are fully socured (1.29 times), sufficient 10 discharge the principal amount and the interest therwn at all times, by way of mortgage on certain immovable properties and!or charge on the loan 
assets of the Company, in terms of respective offer documentl infonnation memorandum and! or Debenture Trust Deed. Further, security cover for secured non-convertible debt securities (listed and unlisted) 
issued by the Company is 1.38 times as at 31st December, 2023. The Security Cover in the prescribed fonnat has been annexed as Annexure-B. . 

8. The Company raises funds in different currencies through a mix of tenn loans from banks! financial institutions! Govt. agencies and issuance of non-convertible securities of different tenors through private 
placement. The issue proceeds have been fully utilized and there are no material deviation(s) hom the stated objects in the offer document! infonnation memorandum of such non-convertible securities. The 
statement as prescribed under Regulation 52(7) &; 52(7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been armexed as Annexure-c. 
Further, there has been no defaullas on 31st December, 2023 in the repayment of debt securities, borrowings and subordinated liabilities and the Company has met all its debt servicing obligations, whether 

principal or interest, during the period. 

9. There are no cases of loans transferred! acquired during the quarter ended 31st December, 2023 (previous quarter Nil) under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan exposures) Directions, 

2021 dated 24th September 2021. 

10. The figures for the quarter ended 31st December 2023 and 31st December 2022 have been derived by deducting the year to date unaudited figures for the period ended 30th September 2023 and 30th 

September 2022 from the unaudited figures for the period ended 31st December 2023 and 31st December 2022 respectively. 

11. Previous period! years' figures have been regroupedl reclassified, wherever necessary, in order to make them comparable. 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd January 2024 

For REC Limited 

(Vivek Kumal" Dewangan) 

hainnan & Managing OUed:or 
DIN ·013m12 



Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

As at! For the Quarter/l!eriod ended 31st Dec b 2023 gm er 

Standalone 

Annexure A 

S.No. Particulars Unit As at! For the quarter As alf For the period 
ended 31.12.2023 ended 31.12.2023 

1 Debt Equity Ratio' times 6.65 

2 Outstanding Redeemable preference shares ;r in Crores Nil 

3 Debenture Redemption Reserve ;r in Crores Nil 

4 Net Worth' ;r in Crores 64,787.09 

5 Total debts to total assets' times 0.81 

6 Operating Margin 4 % 34.18 36.47 

7 Net profit Margin' % 27.24 28.93 

8 Sector specific equivalent ratios 

(a) CRAR' % 28.21 

(b) Gross Credit Impaired Assets Rati07 % 2.78 

(c) Net Credit Impaired Assets Ratio' % 0.82 

A~ at! For the Qyarter/l!erio!! endgd 31st Decem!1gr 2022 

Standalone 

S.No. Particulars Unit As at! For the quarter As at! For the period 

ended 31.12.2022 ended 31.12.2022 

1 Debt Equity Ratio' times 6.44 

2 Outstanding Redeemable preference shares ;r in Crores Nil 

3 Debenture Redemption Reserve ;r in Crores Nil 

4 Net Worth' ~ in Crores 54,839.84 

5 Total debts to total assets' times 0.80 

6 Operating Margin 4 % 36.54 34.00 

7 Net profit Margin' % 29.64 27.65 

8 Sector specific eqUivalent ratios 

(a) CRAR' % 25.00 

(b) Gross Credit Impaired Assets Rati07 % 3.63 

(c) Net Credit Impaired Assets Ratio' % 1.12 

Notes: 
1 Debt/Equity Ratio = Net Debt / Net Worth (Net debt represents principal outstanding less cash and cash equivalents 
2 Net Worth is calculated as defined in section 2(57) of Companies Act, 2013. 

3 Total debts to total assets = Total Debt / Total Assets. 
4 Operating Margin = Net Operating Profit Before Tax / Total Revenue from Operation. 

S Net profit Margin = Net Profit after Tax / Total income. 
6 CRAR = Adjusted Net worth/ Risk weighted assets, calculated as per applicable RBI guidelines. 

7 Gross Credit Impaired Asset Ratio = Gross Credit Impaired Assets / Gross Loan Assets. 

8 Net Credit Impaired Asset Ratio = Net Credit Impaired Assets / Gross Loan Assets. 

9 
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AnnexureC 

Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(7) & 52(7 A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended 31st December, 2023 

A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds: 

. if in Crores 

Mode of Fund If 8 is Yes, 

Raising then specify 

Name of (Public Type of Date of Any the purpose of 

the Issuer ISIN issues/ Private instru raising Amount Funds deviation for which the Remarks, 

placement) ment funds Raised utilized (Yes/No) funds were if any 

utilized 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

RECLimited 
Private 

NCD 09-11-2023 2,670.00 
lNE020B08EP3 Placement 

2,670.00 NO NA 

RECLimited 
Private 

NCD 09-11-2023 2,818.70 
INE020B08EQ1 Placement 

2,818.70 NO NA 

Private . 
RECLimited 

INE020B08ES7 Placement 
NCD 28-11-2023 1,679.00 1,679.00 NO NA 

RECLimited 
Private 

NCD 28-11-2023 2,899.69 2,899.69 
INE020B08ER9 Placement 

NO NA 

RECLimited 
Private 

NCD 12-12-2023 1,033.00 
lNE020B08ET5 Placement 

1,033.00 NO NA 

RECLimited 
Private 

NCO 12-12-2023 3,539.40 3,539.40 
INE020B08EU3 Placement 

NO NA 

Total 14,639.79 14,639.79 
-

B. Statement of deviation! variation in use of Issue proceeds: 

Particulars Remarks 

Name of listed entity RECLIMITED 



Particulars 

Mode of fund raising 

Type of instrument 

Date of raising funds 

Amount raised 

Report filed for quarter ended 

Is there a deviation! variation in use of funds raised? 

Whether any approval is required to vary the objects of the issue stated in the prospectus/ offer 
document? 

If yes, details of the approval so required? 

Remarks 

I Ptiblie iSSHe{ Private placement 

Non-convertible Securities 

Please refer Col. 5 above table 

~ 14,639.79 crores 

31-12-2023 

No 

I Date of approval I N.A 

Explanation for the deviation! variation 

Comments of the audit committee after review 

Comments of the auditors, if any 

Objects for which funds have been raised and where there has been a deviation/ variation, in the following table: 

Original 
object 

Modified 
object, if 

any 

Deviation could mean: 

Original 
allocation 

Modified 
allocation, if 

any 

Funds I Amount of deviation! variation for the quarter I Remarks, if 
utilised according to applicable object any 

({ in Crores and in %) 

---NA---

a. Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised. 

~ ffCi'y""':'\. (;'\\ b. Deviation in the amount of funds actually utilized as against what was originally disclosed. 

;:;
~~ . 

. 
// c.n3i:d J~~ 
i"c;~,~ 

(ll~( De~·92 l~~ 
\\'} '1--- / ~'/; 
~ "1: ~'" 
~Acd;~ 
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~. 
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REC Limited 
Registered Office· CorM, SCOPE Complex. 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi ·110003, CIN: L40101DLl%9GOIOO509S 

Statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and period ended 31·12·2023 
~ InCrores) 

S.No. Particulars Quarter Ended Period Ended VearEnded 
31-12-2023 30-09-2023 31-12-2022 31-12-2023 31-12·2022 31..()3·2023 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

1 Income 
A Interest Income 
(j) Interest Income on loan IISsets 11,812.00 11.213.22 9,660.06 33,490.26 28.456.30 38,359.91 
(ii) Other interest income 137.97 186.17 121.65 551.02 391.59 486.43 

Sllb·tuw (A) - Interest Intorne 11,949.97 11,399.39 9,781.71 34,1)41.28 28,841,89 38,846.34 
B Other Operating Income 
(i) Dividend Income 0.81 8.58 0.81 9.57 11.89 
(ii) Fees and commission income 53.13 71.01 62.61 143.66 152.68 287.17 
(ill) Netgainl (loss) on fair value changes (15.52) 104.09 (161.78) 338.76 76.08 45.31 
(iv) Saleofservices 64.19 112.94 90.64 303.06 148.98 287.55 

Sub-tow (8) - Other Operating Income 101.80 288.85 0." 786.29 387.31 631.92 
C Total Revenue from Operations (A+B) 12,051.11 11,688.24 9,781.76 34,827.57 29,235.20 39,478.26 
D Other Income 19.77 13.02 13.71 37.00 30.33 41.90 

Total income (C+D) 12,071.54 11,701.26 9,795.47 34,864.57 29,265.53 39,520,16 , 
-"~ A Finance costs 7,653.59 7,349.77 6,133.94 22,052.03 17,237.11 23,733.33 

B Net translation! transaction exchange loss! (gllin) (23.91) 80.99 207.91 106.62 1,144.25 1,114.04 

C Fees lind commission expense 5.61 6.29 4.43 15.38 11.35 16.29 
D Impairment on finandalinstruments 56.44 (767.40) (275.18) (645.92) 451.95 142.17 
E Cost of services rendered 4.10 63.54 7.73 174.03 31.56 54.06 
F Employee benefits expenses 69.43 48.51 56.19 171.96 174.86 204.10 

G Depreciation and amortization 6.00 6.14 6.12 17.97 17.98 24.26 

H Corporate sodal responsibility expenses 87.58 17.75 20.62 132.93 115.84 203.91 
I Other expenses 41.01 58.06 23.47 109.11 84.19 130.33 

Total Expenses (A to n 7,899.85 6,863.65 6,185.24 22,134.11 19,269.09 25,622.49 

3 Profit before Tax (1-2) 4,171,69 4,837.61 3,610.23 12,'730.46 9,996.44 13,897.67 

• Tax Expense 

A Current Tax 
- Current Year 878.66 746.05 653.24 2,425.39 1,976.96 2,nO.50 

- Earlier Years I.S1 0.09 (S6.93) 1.6{) (147.29) (l47.4S) 

B Deferred Tax (16.90) 301.57 98.59 237.10 65.16 157.64 

Total Tax Expen.se (A+B) 863.27 1,047,71 694.90 2,664.09 1,894.83 2,730.69 

5 Netprofit for the period (3-4) 3,308.42 3,789,90 2,915.33 10,066.37 8,101.61 11,166,98 

6 Other I:omprehenllive Inrome/(Lo") 
6) Item~ that will not be reclassified 10 profit or loss ,.) R~measurement gains/(Iosses) on defined benefit plans 3.73 1.0S 4.78 (2.36) (5.99) 

- Tax impact on above (0.94) (0.26) (1.20) 0.59 1.51 

Ib) 
Changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value 

9.11 6.77 (7.67) 43.69 (44.38) (S8.16) 
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

-Tax impact on above (6.40) (0.28) (0.21) (6.82) (0.32) (032) 

Sub-total (i) 5.SO 7'8 (7.88) ..... (46.47) (62.96) 

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit Dr loss 
(0) Effuctlve portion of gam.s and loss on hedging instruments in cash flow 

(745.69) (146.06) (239.04) (744.60) 479.36 542.33 
hod"" 
- Tax impact on above 261.73 (37.30) 60.17 187.40 (120.64) (136.49) 

Ib) Cost of hedging reserve (363.33) 830.54 77.01 526.89 (2,575.34) (1,755.82) 

. Tax impact on above 121.48 (239.07) (19.38) (132.61) 648.16 441.90 

Sub-Iotal(ill (725.81) 408.11 (121.24) (162.92) (1,568.46) (908,08) 

Other comprehensive incomelOoss) for the period (i + ii) (120.31) 415.39 (12.9.12) (122.47) (1,614.93) (971.04) 

7 Total comprehensive Inl:ome fur the period (5+6) 2,588.11 4,205.29 2,786.21 9,943.90 6,486.68 10,195.94 

8 Paid up Equity ShareCapilal (Face Value ~10 per share) 2,633.22 2,633.22 2,633.22 2,633.22 2,633.22 2,633.22 

9 Other Equity (as per audited balance sheelas at 31st March) 55,487.29 

10 Bask & Diluted earnings per equity shan! of~ 10 each (in ~). 

A For continuing operations 12" 14.39 11.07 38X1 ".77 42.28 

B For discontinued operations 

C For oontinuing and discontinued operations 12.56 14.39 11.07 38.23 30.11 42.28 

Set (Il:ctJl"P<I"y"'g not£:\" to till jintDIdlll rtsUl/s . 

• Ellming P.., Slwrt (EPS) is not tDlnuaJistd for 1M quart..,. and period mdtd. 



Nores to the COlllOlidated fuaancial re.ults: 

1. The above consolidated financial results of the Company were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on 23rd January, 

2024. These results have been subject 10 limited review by the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

2. The ronsoUdated financial results have been prepared in aOO)rdance with the recognition and measurement principles [aid down in Indian AOO)unting Standard (Ind-AS) 34 - 'Interim Financtal 

Reporting', notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India. 

3. The limited reviewed consolidated accounts of the subsidiary company ROC Power Development and Consultancy Limited has been consolidated in accordance with the Indian Accounttng Standard 

110 'Consolidated Financial Statements'. 

4.(.) Provisioning on Joan assets is based on "ECL (Expected Credit Loss) methodology" under Ind-AS norms, duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and upon the report provided by an 

independent agency'appointed by the Company, which also considers ratings by the Ministry of Power, as and when they are updated, for Distribution Companies (DISCOMs). This Is further revIeWed 
by management overlays in certain accounts wherever necessary considering the factors involved and also on account of aligning the provisions with the lead lender. Details are as foUows: 

(~l C n rores) 

S.No. Parlicu1us Asat31.12.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

Stage 1&2 Stage 3 T,t>! Stage 1&2 Stage 3 T,W 
I. Loan assets 4,83,654.42 13,811.21 4,97,465.63 4,20,119.71 14,892.08 4,35,011.79 

2. Impairment loss allowance (net of movements)" 3,380.74 9,723.89 13,104.63 3,744.24 10,519.51 14,263.75 

3. Provisioning Cover.ge (%) (211) 0.70% 70.41% 2.63% 0.89% 70.64% 3.28% . In addition, ~ 21.52 crores as at 31st December 2023 (~ 15,87 crores as at 31st March 2023) IS mamtairJed towards lmpamnent allowance on Letterof Comfort . 

(b) During the quarter, three stressed assets have'been resolved with an outstanding loan amounting to i!: 1,080.63 crores and after adjusting Expected Credit Loss (ECL) of i!: 531.50 crores and recoveries of 

t 580.61 crores, an amount of i!: 31.48 trores has been written back. 

5. Subsequent to December 31, 2023, the Company has raised JPY 61.1 Billion in multiple tranches through EuroYen Green Bonds under its Global Medium-Term Note Prograrrune. These bonds have been 

listed exclusively on IFSC International Stock Exchanges, India lNX and NSE IFSC in GIFr City, Gandhinagar, Gujarat. The net procee<:lS from bond issuance will be utilised towards eligible projects in 

line with the Company's Green Finance Framework. 

6. The Company's operation comprise of only one business segment ~ lending to power, logistic and infrastructure sector. Hence, there is no other reportable segement in tenns of Indian Accounting 

Standard (lnd-AS) 108 "Operating Segments". 

7. The additional information as requIred under Regulation 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed as Annexuze -A. 

8. There are no cases of loans transferredl acquired during the quarter ended 31st December, 2023 (previous quarter Nil) under Master Direction - Reserve flank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) 

Directions,2021 dated 24th September 2021. 

9. 1he figures for the quarter ended 31st December 2023 and 31st December 2022 have been derived by deducting the year to date unaudited figures for the period ended 30th September 2023 and 30th 

September 2022 from the unaudited figures for the period ended 31st December 2023 and 31st December 2022 respectively. 

10. Previous periodl years' figures have been regrouped! reclassified, wherever necessary, in order to make them comparable. 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd JanlWf 2024 

For REC Limited 

(Vivek Kumar Dewangan) 

Chairman &0 MllJUlging Diredo .. 

DIN • 01377212 



Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

As atJ For the quarter! neriod ended 31st December 2023 

Consolidated 

Annexure A 

S.No. Particulars Unit As atJ For the quarter As atJ For the period 
ended 31.12.2023 ended 31.12.2023 

1 Debt Equity Ratio' times 6.60 

2 Outstanding Redeemable preference shares ~ in Crores Nil 

3 Debenture Redemption Reserve ~ in Crores Nil 

4 Net Worth' ~ in Crores 65,291.40 

5 Total debts to total assets' times 0.81 

6 Operating Margin4 % 34.45 . 36.45 

7 Net profit Margin' % 27.41 28.87 

8 Sector specific equivalent ratios 

(a) CRAR6 % 28.21 

(b) Gross Credit Impaired Assets Rati07 % 2.78 

(c) Net Credit Impaired Assets Ratio' % 0.82 

A~ III. Fgr the gUWYJ;!eriod endgd 31st Dgcgmber 2022 

Consolidated 

S.No. Particulars Unit As atJ For the quarter As atJ For the period 
ended 31.12.2022 ended 31.12.2022 

1 Debt Equity Ratio' times 6.40 

2 Outstanding Redeemable preference shares 'in Crores Nil 

3 Debenture Redemption Reserve 'in Crores Nil 

4 Net Worth' ~ in Crores 55,216.21 

5 Total debts to total assets' times 0.80 

6 Operating Margin4 % 36.77 34.09 

7 Net profit Margin' % 29.76 27.68 

8 Sector specific eqUivalent ratios 

(a) CRAR6 % 25.00 

(b) Gross Credit Impaired Assets Rati07 % 3.63 

(c) Net Credit Impaired Assets Ratio' % 1.12 

Notes: 
1 Debt/Equity Ratio ~ Net Debt! Net Worth (Net debt represents principal outstanding less cash and cash equivalents 
2 Net Worth is calculated as defined in section 2(57) of Companies Act, 2013. 
3 Total debts to total assets ~ Total Debt! Total Assets. 
4 Operating Margin ~ Net Operating Profit Before Tax ! Total Revenue from Operation. 
5 Net profit Margin ~ Net Profit after Tax! Total Income. 
6 CRAR ~ Adjusted Net worth! Risk weighted assets, calculated as per applicable RBI guidelines. 

7 Gross Credit Impaired Asset Ratio ~ Gross Credit Impaired Assets! Gross Loan Assets. 
8 Net Credit Impaired Asset Ratio ~ Net Credit Impaired Assets! Gross Loan Assets. 

9 



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-ll0092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accol.l ntants 

B-41, Panchshee I Enclave, 

New Delhi-ll0017. 

Review Report on Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
31th December, 2023 of REC Limited. 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
REC Limited 
Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 
7, lodi Road, 
New Delhi - 110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements of REC 
Limited ('Company') which comprise the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, and the related 
Statement of Profit and loss(including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months period then ended and a 
summary of material accounting poliCies (together hereinafter referred as "Special Purpose 
Standalone Interim Financial Statements") as required by Indian Accounting Standard 34 'Interim 
Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements. 

These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared 
in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in in all material respects, 
in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting Standard 34 
'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements have been prepared 
solely for the purpose of inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of 
the Company and its Holding Company ("Power Finance Corporation ltd"). 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements in 
accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial 
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 
assurance as to whether the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements are free of material 

review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries 'marily of 

for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical ""v~~fIui «.<J view 
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procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements are not prepared, in 
all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian 
Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. 

Other Matters 

We did not review or audited the standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. These standalone financial statements have been audited by other firms 

of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated 17th May 2023 expressed an unmodified opinion 

on the standalone financial results of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

Our conclusion on the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements is not modified in 

respect of this matter. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion of financial 
information in respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding Company thereto 
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume 
any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown 
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

For Mis Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Date: January 23, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 

For Mis SCV & Co. LLP. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration:00023SNINSOOO89 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-ll0092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants 

B-41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhi-ll0017. 

Review Report on Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
31" December, 2023 of REC Limited. 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
REC Limited 
Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 
7, Lodi Road, 
New Delhi - 110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of 
REC Limited ('Company') and its subsidiary (the parent company and its subsidiary together referred 
to as "the Group") which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, and the 
related Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows for the nine months period then ended and a summary of material accounting policies (together 
hereinafter referred as "Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements") as required by 
Indian Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 
Parent Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been 
prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in in all material 
respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting 
Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have 
been prepared solely for the purpose of inclusion of financial information in respect of fund-raising 
programmes of the Company and its Holding Company ("Power Finance Corporation Ltd"). 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in 
accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial 
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 
assurance as to whether the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements are free of material 
misstate . review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, pr" rily of 
perso c; an Ja' for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical an CrIP 
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procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are not prepared, 
in all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian 
Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. 

Other Matters 

i. We did not review the interim financial statement of the subsidiary included in the Special 
Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, whose interim financial reflect total 
assets of ~ 782.39 crores, total revenue of ~ 325.42 crores, total net profit after tax of ~ 86.86 
crores and total comprehensive income of ~ 86.86 crores for the year to date ended 31st 

December 2023 and cash out flows(net} of ~ 5.6 crores for the year to date ended 31st 
December, 2023 ,as considered in the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements. These interim financial statements have been reviewed by other auditor whose 

Report has been furnished to us by the Management and our conclusion on the Statement, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary is based 
solely on the Report of the other auditor and the procedures performed by us as. 

Our conclusion on the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements is not 

modified in respect of this matter. 

ii. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023. These consolidated financial statements have been audited by other 

firms of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated 17th May 2023 expressed an 

unmodified opinion on the consolidated financial results of the Company for the year ended 

March 31, 2023. 

Our conclusion on the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements is not 

modified in respect of this matter. 



iii. This report is intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion of 
financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding 
Company thereto and should not be used by any other person or for any other pu rpose. We 
do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other 
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly 
agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Date: January 23,2024 
Place: New Delhi 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration:00023SNINSOOO89 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 

Designation: Partner 
Membership Number: 087010 



RECLimited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOIOOS095 

Balance Sheet as at 31st December 2023 

S. Particulars Note 

No. No. 
ASSETS 

(1) Financial Assets 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents • 
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 7 

(e) Derivative financial instruments • 
(d) Loans • 
(e) Investments 10 

(D Other financial assets 11 

Total - Financial Assets (1) 

(2) Non-Financial Assets 

(a) Current tax assets (net) 12 

(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 13 

(e) Property, Plant & Equipment 14 

(d) Capital Work-in-Progress 14 

(e) Other Intangible Assets 14 

CD Other non-financial assets 15 

Total - Non-Financial Assets (2) 
(3) Assets classified as held for sale 1. 

Total ASSETS (]+2+3) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILmES 

(1) Financial Liabilities 

(a) Derivative financial instruments • 
(b) Debt Securities 17 

(e) Borrowings (other than debt securities) ,. 
(d) Subordinated Uabilities 1. 

(e) Other financial liabilities 20 

Total- Financial Liabilities (1) 

(2) Non-Financial Liabilities 

(a) Provisions 21 

(b) Other non-financial liabilities 22 

Total - Non-Financial Liabilities (2) 

(3) EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share Capital 23 

(b) Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature 24 

(e) Other equity 2S 

Total - Equity (3) 
Total - LlABILmES AND EQWlY (1+2+3) 

Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies Ho5 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd January 2024 

(~ in Crores) 
As at Asat 

31-12-2023 31-03-2023 

1,510.32 39.00 
629.70 1,948.34 

11,340.87 8,,981.61 
4,87,251.63 4,22,083.91 

4,397.78 3,137.98 
24,768.01 24,400.28 

5,29,898.31 4,60,591.12 

351.04 295.78 
3,099.85 3,276.99 

632.45 638.91 
6.76 2.72 
0.'2 1.62 

127.27 69.65 
4,217.99 4,285.67 

0.05 0.34 
5.34,116.35 4,64,877.13 

1,511.81 976.95 

2,61,809.87 2,36,948.99 

1,73,951.64 1,37,114.13 

4,312.89 6,773.30 

27,396.10 25,174.58 

4,68,982.31 4,06,987.95 

115.02 110.94 

231.93 98.57 

346.95 209.51 

2,633.22 2,633.22 

558.40 558.40 
61,595.47 54,488.05 

64,787.09 57,679.67 

5,34,116.35 4,64,877.13 

~ 
Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN - 01317212 



REC Limited 
Registered Office· Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOIOOS095 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st December 2023 

S. Particulars 

No. 

Revenue from Operations 

(i) Interest Income 

(ii) Dividend Income 

(iii) Fees and Commission Income 

(iv) Net gainl (loss) on fair value changes 

I. Total Revenue from Operations (i to iii) 

II. Other Income 

111. Total Income (1+11) 

Expenses 

(i) Finance Costs 

(ii) Net translationl transaction exchange loss 

(ill) Fees and commission Expense 

(iv) lmpainnent on financial insbuments 

(v) Employee Benefits Expenses 

(vi) Depreciation and amortization 

(vii) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 

(viii) Other Expenses 

IV. Total Expenses Ii to viii) 

V. Profit before Tax (III~IV) 

VI. Tax Expense 

(i) Current Tax 

~CurrentYear 

• Earlier Years 

(ii) Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expense (i+ii) 

VII. Profit for the period 

Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(,) Re-measurement gains/(Iosses) on defined benefit plans 

• Tax impact on above 

(h) Changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

- Tax impact on above 

Sub-Total (i) 

(ti) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

(,) Effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges 

* Tax impact on above 

(h) Cost of hedging reserve 

* Tax impact on above 

Sub-Total (ii) 

V1l1. Other comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the period (i+ii) 

IX. Total comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIII) 

X. Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share of t 10 each (in t) 

(1) For continuing operations 

(2) For discontinued operations 

(3) For continuing and discontinued operations 

Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 23rd January 2024 

Note 

No. 

26 

27 

28 

33 

2' 

3. 

31 

32 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

4. 

lto5 

(~. C on rores 

Period ended Period ended 
31-12-2023 31-12-2022 

34,026.53 28,841.69 

24.21 24.34 

143.66 152.68 

338.76 76.08 

34,533,16 29,094,79 

37.68 33.98 

34,570,84 29,128.77 

22,053.22 17,240.32 

106.62 1,144.25 

15.38 11.35 

(646.52) 434.56 

154.27 156.44 

17.74 17.84 

131.89 114.89 

105.37 81.57 

21,937.91 19,201.22 

12,632.87 9,927.55 

2,404.85 1,952.04 

(147.29) 

225.11 69.07 

2,629.96 1,873,82 

10,002.91 8,053.73 

4.78 (2.36) 

(1.20) 0.59 

43.69 (44.38) 

(6.82) (0.32) 

4""5 (46.47) 

(744.60) 479.36 

187.40 (120.64) 

526.89 (2,575.34) 

(132.61) 648.16 

(162.92) (1,568.46) 

(t22.47) (1,614.93) 

9,880.44 6,438.80 

37.99 30.59 

- -
37.99 30.59 

Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN - 013772U 



A Equity shaJ:e capital 

Particulars 

Balance at the beginning of the period 
Changes in equity share capital during the period" 

Balance at the end of the period 

REC Limited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: l40101DL1969GOlOO5095 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st December 2023 

As at 31·12-2023 

2,633.22 

2,633.22 

(~ in Crores) 

Ali at 31-03-2023 

1,974.92 

658.30 

2,633.2.2 

During the FY 2OZ2-23, the Company has issued 65,83,()6,ooo equity shares of t 10 ea<:h as fully paid-up bonus shares in the ratio of 1 (One) equity share for every 3 ('I'hree) equity share outstanding on the J:ecord date i.e. 18th 

August 2022. 

B Instruments entirely equity in nature 

(~in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03·2023 

Balance at the beginning of the period 558.40 558.40 

Changes in instruments entirely equity in nature during the period 

Balance at the end of the period 558.40 558.40 

C Other Equity 
(~in Crores 

Particulars Reserves &: Surplus FVoa· Effective Costs of Total 

Special Reserve for Statutory Securities Foreign General Retained Equity Pomonof Hedging 

Reserve Bad and· Reserve uls PJ:emium Currency R...,.. Earnings Instruments Cash Flow J:eserve 

created uls doubtful 45-IC of Account Monetary Hedges 

36(1) (viii) of debtsuls Reserve Bank Item 

the Income 36(1j(viia) of of India Act, Translation 

Tax Act, 1961 the Income 1934 Difference 

Tax Act, 1961 Account 

Balance as at 31st Mar<:h 2022 22,302.93 196.82 5,814.00 2,236.54 (555.29) 11,781.62 6,915.38 (37.98) 194.21 (395.95) 48,452.28 

Profit for the period 8,053.73 8,053.73 

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (net of taxes) (1.77) (1.77) 

Recognition through Other Comprehensive Income (net of (44.70) 358.72 (1,927.18) (1,613.16) 

taxes) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - - - - - 8,os1.96 (44.70) 358.72 (1,927.18) 6,438.80 

Transferred to/ (from) Retained Earnings 1,983.91 - 1,611.15 (3,595.06) 

Transferred to General Reserve (196.82) 196.82 

Reclassification of gainl (loss) on sale/ extinguishment of 756 (7.56) 

FVOCI equity instrument (net of taxes) 

Foreign Currency Translation gainl (loss) on long term (386.36) (386.36) 

monetary items during the period 

Amortisation during the period 67.08 67.08 

Sub-total 1,983.91 (196.82) 1,611.15 - (319.28) 196.82 (3,587.50) (7.56) - - (319.28) 

Utilised for issue of Bonus Equity Shares (658.30) (658.30) 

Expenses incurred on issue of Bonus Equity Shares (0.71) (0.71) 

Dividends 
(2,26457) (2,264.57) 

Sub-total· Transaction with owners - - . (659.01) . (2,264.571 . (2,923.58) 
Balance as at 31st December 2022 24,286.84 7,425.15 1,577.53 (874.57) 11,978.44 9,115.27 (90.24) 552.93 (2,323.13) 51,648.12 

~~ 
~M~ ~ 

( ) ~ ~ ~ 



Particulars Reserves &: Swplus 
Special Reserve for Statutory Securities Foreign 
Reserve Bad and Reserveu/s Premium Currency 

created U/S doubtful 45-IC of Account Monetary 
36(1) (vill) of debts U/S Reserve Bank Item 
the Income 36(1)(vlla) of of India Act, Translation 

Tax Act, 1961 thelncome 19,. Difference 
Tax Act, 1961 Account 

Balance as at 31st March 2023 24,977.89 -
Profit for the period 

8,025.15 1,577.53 (79(}.44) 

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (net of taxes) 

Recognition through Other Comprehensive Income (net of 
taxes) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period - - -
Transferred tol (from) Retained Earnings 2,286.83 504.43 2,001.72 
Transferred to General Reserve 

Reclassification of gainl (loss) on salel extinguishment of 

FVOCI equity instrument (net of taxes) 

Foreign Currency Translation gainl (loss) on long term (112.25) 
monetary items during the period 

Amortisation during the period 196.28 
Sub-total 2,286.83 504.43 2,001.72 - 84.03 
Dividends 

Sub-total- Transaction with owners - -
Balance as at 31st December 2023 27,264.72 504.43 10,026.87 1,577.53 (706.41) 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd January 2024 

FVOO-
General Retained Equity 
Reserve Eamin .. Instruments 

11,978.44 9,930.77 (101.47) 

10,002.91 

3.58 

36.87 

- 10,006.49 36$7 

(4,792.98) 

(5.06) 5.06 

(4,798.04) 5.0. 

(2,857.05) 

(2,857.05) -
11,978.44 12,282.17 (59.54) 

c, '!: in .... mres) 
Effective Costs of Total 
Portion of Hedging 

Cash Flow reserve 

Hedges 

600.05 (1,709.87) 54,488.05 

10,002.91 

3.58 
(557.20) 394.28 (126.05) 

(557.20) 394.28 9,880.44 

(112.25) 

1%.28 

84.03 

(2,857.05) 

- (2,857.05) 

42$5 (1,31559) 61,595.47 

~ 
Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman &: Managing Director 

DIN - 01377212 



RECLimited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOI005095 

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31st December 2023 

Particulars 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 

Net Profit before Tax 

Adjustments for: 
1. Loss! (Gain) on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 

2. Loss/ (Gain) on derecognition of Assets held for sale (net) 

3. Depredation & Amortization 

4. Impairment losses on Financial Instruments 

5. Loss/ (Gain) on Fair Value Changes (net) 

6. Effective Interest Rate (EIR) in respect of Loan Assets and Borrowings 

7. Interest on Commercial Paper 

8. Unrealised Foreign ExChange Translation Loss/ (Gain) 

9. Interest on Investments 

Operating Profit! (Loss) before Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

1, Loan Assets 

2. Derivatives 
3. Other Financial and Non~ Financial Assets 

4, Other Financial and Non· Financial Liabilities & Provisions 

Cash flow from Operations 

1. Income Tax Paid (including TOS) 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

1. Sale of Property. Plant & Equipment 

2. Sale of assets held for sale 

3. Investment in Property. Plant & Equipment (incl. CWIP & Capital Advances) 
4. Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets under development & 

Capital Advances) 

5. Finance Costs Capitalised 
6. Sale! (Investment) in Equity Shares 

7. Redemption! (Investment) in High Quality Liquid Assels (HQLAs) (net) 

8. Redemption! (Investment) in Debt Securities other than HQLAs (net) 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

1. Issue! (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (net) 

2. Issue! (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) 

3. Raising! (Repaymenls) of Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL from Banks/ FIs (net) 

4. Raising! (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and Borrowings (net) 

5. Expenses on issue of Bonus Equity Shares 

6. Raising! (Redemption) of Subordinated Liabilities (net) 

7. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares 

8. Repayment towards Lease Liability 

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Net Increase! (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the period 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd January 2024 

w C In rores 

Period ended 31-12-2023 Period ended 31-12-2022 

12,632.87 

3.78 

(1.32) 

17.74 

(646.52) 

(336.73) 

(7.77) 

100.47 

(592.34) 

(25.32) 

11,144.86 

(63,082.85) 

356.65 

(744.41) 

3,601.98 

(48,723.77) 

(2,461.31) 

0.05 

1.61 

(17.37) 

-

(0.32) 

3.34 

(448.02) 

(532.57) 

24,068.51 

2,849.37 

11,286.57 

20,889.89 

-
(2,500.00) 

(2,857.05) 

(0.02) 

9,927.55 

1.66 

(3.28) 

17.84 

434.56 

(75.79) 

(28.86) 

-
1,551.58 

(21.01) 

11,804.25 

(26,556.69) 

628.99 

880.41 

(855.60) 

(14,098.64) 

(2,231.94) 

(51,185.08) (16,330.58) 

0.05 

3.56 

(12.01) 

(0.01) 

-
10.13 

(457.82) 

(184.74) 

(993.28) (640.84) 

1,797.93 

-

10,482.79 

7,030.08 

(0.71) 

-
(2,264.57) 

-
53,737.27 17,045.52 

1,558.91 74.10 

(48.59) 126.40 

1,510.32 200.50 

Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN - 01377212 



RECLimited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003 
CIN: L40101DL1969GOI005095 

Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company") was incorporated in the year 1969. The Company is 

domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal place of 

business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India. The books of accounts 

are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plot no. 1-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana, in 

addition to the registered office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country, 

mainly in the State Capitals and one training center at Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in extending financial assistance across 

the power sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) 

Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Being an NBFC, 

the company is regulated by Reserve Bank of India. 

The company has been accorded with the status of a 'Maharatna' Central Public Sector Enterprise by 

the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance. 

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are 

interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. 

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 

Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges 

2. Basis of Preparation 

These Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose of 

inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its 

Holding Company and complies with the measurement principles laid down under Ind AS notified 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines including 

those issued by RBI. 

These financial statements for the period ended 31" December 2023 were authorized and approved 
by the Board of Directors on 23'" January 2024. 

3. Material Accounting Policies 

The material accounting poliCies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given 

below: 

3.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of 

accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are 



measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These policies have been applied 

consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional currency 

of the Company. 

3.2 Income recognition 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 

and rate applicable. 

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) 

costs and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue i 

interest including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, 

except for credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only 

after the complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest 

including interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)/ Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code (!BC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and 

remaining recovery thereafterl towards interest and other charges, if any. 

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective 

interest rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized 

on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately 

under the head interest income. 

Interest income on credit~impaired loan assets, unless realized, is not being recognised as a matter of 

prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of stressed assets. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire 

interest amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted 

against the corresponding interest income. 

Income from G(YlJernment schemes 

Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on accrual basis based on the services 

rendered. 

Dividend income 

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account 

on accrual basis when right to receive payment is established. 

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as 

established only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 



Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is 

recognised separately under the head 'Dividend Income'. 

Other services 

Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on 

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Company in the year of receipt_ 

3.3 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurred in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or 

construction of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended 

use, are capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready 

for its intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per 

the effective interest rate method. 

3.4 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 

. shares outstanding during the period. 

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.5 Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re­

measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized 

in the financial statements before 1 April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a "Foreign 

Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and amortized over the balance period of 

such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods. 

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost 

(translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 



3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Land 

Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined, 

related carrying amounts are not amortized. 

Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as 

finance lease and is amortized over the lease term. 

Other Tangible assets 

PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costs 

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 

of operating in the manner intended by the Company's management. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount Or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 

to the Company beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as 

prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in 

use for more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is 

provided @ 100%. 

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each 

financial year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

De-recognition 

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de­

recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the differenoe between the net disposal proceeds and 

the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital Work-in-Progress 

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress: 

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly 

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade 

discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the 

acquisition! construction of PPE which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under 

'Capital Advances: 



3.7 Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such assets are recognized where it is probable that 

the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the company. 

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value) 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated 

useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset 

may be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each 

reporting date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management 

estimates the useful life of intangible assets to be five years. 

Intangible Assets under Development 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as 

'Intangible assets under development' till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for 

the acquisition! development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are 

classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Derecognition of Intangible Assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 

from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as 

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3.8 Lease accounting: 

Right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former operating leases are 

recognised except for those identified as short-term or low-value lease. 

An assessment at contract inception is made whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is 

defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying 

asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration'. 

To apply this definition, the contract is assessed for three key evaluations which are whether: 

the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or 

implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available 

right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset 

throughout the period of use, conSidering its rights within the defined scope of the contract 

right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use and right to direct 'how 

and for what purpose' the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

At lease commencement date, a right-of-use asset and a lease liability is recognized on the balance 

sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the 

lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the 

asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement 

date (net of any incentives received). 
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The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to 

the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The right­

of-use asset is also assessed for impairment when such indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments 

unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily 

available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be 

payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be 

exercised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for 

interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modificationr or if there are changes in in­

substance fixed payments. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding· adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use 

asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

3.9 Assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is 

considered as highiy probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Company; are 

available for immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price 

and the sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of 

classification. Such assets are measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are not 

depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

3.10 Financial Instruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 

transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured 

initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities i~ described 

below. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following 

categories upon initial recognition: 
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• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

• Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures (carried at cost in accordance with 

Ind AS 27) 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or at FVOCI are subject to review for impairment at 

least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 

a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied to each 

category of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

following conditions are met: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to 

collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Impairment allowance (expected credit loss) is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized 

cost. 

Modification of cash flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the 

renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Company 

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or 

loss in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the 

present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the 

financial asset's original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount 

of the modified financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial 

asset. 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortized 

cost classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are 

deSignated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this 

category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 

accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or 

losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined 

by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market 

exists. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative 

host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way 

similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that 



foreign exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not 

specific to a party to the contract. 

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at 

fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host 

contracts or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not 

held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are 

measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless deSignated as 

effective hedging instruments. 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment 

classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are 

recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and reported within the FVOCI reserve within 

equity, except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such 

gains and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment. 

However, the Company may transfer the same within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and 

conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 

difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not 

already been recorded. 

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when the contractual 

rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and 

substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Company also derecognizes the financial 

asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financia/liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for financial liabilities held for trading or deSignated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently 

at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All host contracts which are in nature of 

a financial liability and separated from embedded derivative are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 

profit or loss. 
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Hedge accounting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationshlp must meet all of the following 

requirements: 

there is an economic relationshlp between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 

relationshlp 

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationshlp is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that 

the Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at 

fair value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge 
is effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow 
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge 

reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or 

loss. 

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification 

adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedging relationshlp, the Company formally deSignates and documents the 

hedge relationship, in accordance with the Company's risk management objective and strategies. The 
documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s) 

being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationshlp meets the hedging effectiveness 

requirements. 

Fair Value Hedges 

In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of 
Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying amount of the 

hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the hedging instrument 

ceases to exit. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised 

immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.11 Impainnent of financial assets 

Loan assets 

The Company follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss 

(ECL) based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

• Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 



The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime 

ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at 

Default and Loss Civen Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) - The PO represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LCD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a default 

occurs. LCD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually 

be lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, 

interest accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time 

of default. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PO, 

EAD and LCD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on 

an ongoing basis. 

Financial assets other than Loans 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets 

has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly 

since initial reCOgnition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month 

expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset 

as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of 

initial recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is 

available without undue cost or effort that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since 

initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the 

balance sheet date. 

Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has 

stopped pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial AuthOrity. 

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short­

term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an inSignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.13 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in 

equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors 



respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are 

recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Company. 

3.14 Material prior period errors 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for 

the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest 

period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period 

presented, are restated. 

3.15 Prepaid Expenses 

A prepaid eXPense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition. 

3.16 Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI 

or directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in DCI or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is reCOgnized on temporary differences betwe,en the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 

taxable income. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with invesbnents in subsidiaries 

and joint ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the 

Company and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to 

apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively 

enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a 

legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes 

levied by the same tax authority. 

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differenoes. A deferred tax asset is 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred 

tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense 

in profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 

income or equity, respectively. 



3.17 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid 

annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and 

non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions in respect 

of the employees into a separate fund. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay 

further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the 

Company towards defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which 

the contributions relate. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, Post Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF) and 

Other Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit plans 

covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will 

receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and 

other defined parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if 

plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Company's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit 

credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. 

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present 

value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. 

Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. 

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Comprehensive Income. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one­

year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an 

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and 
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transaction value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line 

basis over the expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period 

of the Loan, the unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the 

updated expected remainIng period of the loan on a prospective basis. 

3.18 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the 

Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be 

uncertain. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and 

uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present 

values, where the time value of money is material. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control 

of the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 

cannot be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is 

considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party 

concerning the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this 

asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, 

the related asset is disclosed. 

3.19 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting 

date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 

takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that 



asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset 

in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 

highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements regularly, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.20 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 

to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

3.21 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combinationl if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a business 

combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the 

same party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not 

transitory. 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for 

using the pooling of interest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise significant accounting policies. 

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the 

financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

of the transferor is 



The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the 

transferee 

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional 

consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is 

transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 

3.22 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account 

4. Implementation of New/ Modified Standards 
During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind-AS. 

The Company has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the Company. 

Further, MCA has not issued any new Ind-AS applicable to the company. 

5. Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, 

estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the related disclosures. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on 

historical experience & other relevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results 

may differ from these estimates. 

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & future 

periods if it affects both current & future periods. 

Significant management judgments 
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be 

recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Further, the Company Management has no intention to make 
withdrawal from the Special Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income 

tax Act, 1961 and thus, the special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. 

Hence, the company does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators 
of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could 

result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - Interest income on credit-impaired 

loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of 

stressed assets. 

Significant estimates 
Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives 
of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. 

Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the 

utility of assets. 
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Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation 

of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may signllicantly impact the DBO amount 
and the annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of 

financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing 

estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In 
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the 
extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 

hierarchy is used for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for inca-me taxes, 

Including amount expected to be paid!recovered for uncertain tax positions and also In respect of 

expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset. 

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') - The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial 
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions 
about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and 
resulting losses). The Company makes Significant judgments about .the follOwing while assessing 

expected credit loss to estimate ECL: 

• Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk; 

• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 
product! market and the associated ECL; and 

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL. 
• Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in 

case of default) 



6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

- Cash on Hand (including imprest) 0.06 -

• Balances with Banks 

- in current accounts 547.13 31.31 
- deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 963.13 7.69 
- Short term Investment in Debt Mutual Funds - -

Total 1,510.32 39.00 

7 Bank Balances (other than Cash and Cash Equivalents) 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

- Earmarked Balances with Banks 

- For unpaid dividends 7.12 6.79 
- For govt. funds for onward disbursement as grant 24.51 24.22 

• Earmarked Term Deposits 

- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.62 0.62 
- Term Deposit- Debenture Redemption Reserves 67.01 196.35 

- Balances with banks not available for use pending 530.44 1,720.36 
allotment of 54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 

Total 629.70 1,948.34 



8 Derivative Financial Instruments 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include 

hedges that are either designated as effective hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges. The table below 
shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. 

Part I 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31·12·2023 As at 31·03·2023 

Notional Fair Value • Fair Value· Notional Fair Value· Fair Value· 
Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 

Currency Derivatives 
· Spot and forwards - - - - -
· Currency swaps 3,116.87 56.29 90.27 3,083.13 47.50 58.13 
• Others 

- Call Spread 2,077.91 268.10 1.81 2,055.42 208.14 -
. Seagull Options 1,09,094.16 10,229.06 784.57 80,362.47 8,007.42 87.89 

Sub-total (i) 1,14,288.94 10,553.45 876.65 85,501.02 8,263.06 146.02 

Interest Rate Derivatives 
· Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 71,171.78 787.42 635.16 46,278.27 718.55 300.82 

Sub·total (ii) 71,171.78 787.42 635.16 46,278.27 718.55 300.82 

Other derivatives 
· Reverse cross currency swaps - - - 4,947.00 - 530.11 
Total· Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii+iii) 1,85,460.72 11,340.87 1,511.81 1,36,726.29 8,981.61 976.95 

Part II 

Included in Part I are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below: 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31·12·2023 As at 31-03-2023 

Notional Fair Value • Fair Value - Notional Fair Value· Fair Value • 

Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 

Fair Value Hedging 
• Interest Rate Derivatives 

· Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 15,950.70 45.16 232.47 15,950.70 10.32 289.34 

Sub·total (i) 15,950.70 45.16 232.47 15,950.70 10.32 289.34 

Cash Flow Hedging 
• Currency Derivatives 
. Currency Swaps 3,116.87 56.29 - 3,083.13 38.85 -

. Others 

· Call Spread 2,077.91 268.10 1.81 2,055.42 208.14 -
· Seagull Options 1,09,094.16 10,155.87 784.57 80,362.47 7,979.02 85.76 

• Interest Rate Derivatives 
- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 48,521.08 395.07 402.69 23,627.57 337.69 11.48 

Sub-total (ii) 1,62,810.02 10,875.33 1,189.07 1,09,128.59 8,563.70 97.24 

Undesignated Derivatives 6,700.00 420.38 90.27 11,647.00 407.59 590.37 
Total· Derivative Financial Insbuments (i+ii+iii) 1,85,460.72 11,340.87 1,511.81 1,36,726.29 8,981.61 976.95 

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in effective cash flow hedges are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. In case of fair value hedges, the changes in fair value of the 
derivatives designated as hedging instruments along with the fair value changes in the carrying amount of the hedged items are recognised in the 
Stahnent of Profit & Loss. For undesignated derivatives, the changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 



9 Loans 

The Company has categorised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(A) 

(i) 

(il) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(C)(I 

(i) 

(ii) 

lParticulars 

Loans 

Tenn Loans 

Working Capital Term Loans 

Less: Impainnent loss allowance 

Security Details 

Secured by tangible assets 

Covered by Govt. Guarantees 

Unsecured 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

) Loans in India 

Public Sector 

Private Sector 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

(C)(l I) Loans outside India 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 
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As at 31-12-2023 

Principal Ols Amortised Cost 

4,54,412.01 4,56,985.11 

43,053.62 43,371.15 
Total (A) - Gross Loans 4,97,465.63 5,00,356.26 

(13,104.63) (13,104.63) 
Total (A) - Net Loans 4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

2,40,712.45 2,41,555.33 

2,20,824.95 2,22,710.05 

35,928.23 36,090.88 
Total (B) - Gross Loans 4,97,465.63 5,00,356.26 

(13,104.63) (13,104.63) 
Total (B) - Net Loans 4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

4,50,031.38 4,52,970.68 

47,434.25 47,385.58 
Total (C)(I) - Gross Loans 4,97,465.63 5,00,356.26 

(13,104.63) (13,104.63) 
Total (C)(I) - Net Loans 4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

- -
- -

Total (C)(II) - Net Loans - -
Total (C)(I) and (C)(II) 4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

~ in Crores) 

As at 31-03-2023 

Principal Ols Amortised Cost 

4,08,463.40 4,09,638.42 

26,548.39 26,709.24 

4,35,011.79 4,36,347.66 

(14,263.75) (14,263.75) 

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 

2,42,310.94 2,42,633.17 

1,72,069.58 1,73,004.21 

20,631.27 20,710.28 

4,35,011.79 4,36,347.66 

(14,263.75) (14,263.75) 

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 

3,93,225.23 3,94,571.78 

41,786.56 41,775.88 

4,35,011.79 4,36,347.66 

(14,263.75) (14,263.75) 

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 

- -
-

- -
4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 



10 Investments 

~inCror~ 
Particulars Amortised At fair value Sub-total Others (At Total 

Cost Through Other Through profit Designated at fair Cost) 

Comprehensive oriosa value through 
Income profit or loss 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5= 1+2+3+4) (6) (7=5+6) 
As at 31st December, 2023 
Govt. Securities 1,618.22 - - - 1,618.22 - 1,618,22 
Debt Securities 1,040.88 - 1,068.98 - 2,109.86 - 2,109.86 
Equity Instruments - 422.06 83.31 505.37 0.10 505.47 
Preference Shares 28.72 - - - 28.72 - 28.72 
Others - - - -- -
Total- Gross (A) 2,687.82 422.06 1,152.29 - 4,262.17 0.10 4.262.27 
Investments outside India - - - - -- -
Investments in India 2,687.82 422.06 l,l52.29 - 4,262.17 0.10 4,262.27 
Total- Gross (8) 2,687.82 422.06 1,152.29 - 4,262.17 0.10 4,262.27 
Total Investments 2,687.82 422.06 1,152.29 - 4,262.17 0.10 4,262.27 
Less: impairment loss allowance (e) (28.72) - - - (28.72) - (28.72) 
Total- Net (D=A-C) 2,659.10 422.06 1,152.29 - 4,233.45 0.10 4.233.55 

As at 31st March, 2023 
Govt. Securities U31.74 - - - 1,431.74 - 1,431.74 
Debt Securities 734.78 - 562.34 - 1,297.12 - 1.297.12 
Equity Instruments - 381.71 27.31 409.02 0.10 409.12 
Preference Shares 28.72 - - - 28,72 - 28.72 
Others - - - - - - -
Total- GroBs (A) 2,195.24 381.71 589.65 - 3166.60 0.10 3166.70 
Investments outside India - - - - - - -
Investments in India 2,195.24 381.71 589.65 - 3,166.60 0.10 3,166.70 
Total- GroBs (B) 2,195.24 381.71 589.65 - 3,166.60 0.10 3,166.70 
Total Investments 2,195.24 381.71 589.65 - 3,166.60 0.10 3,166.70 
Less: impairment loss allowance (C) (28.72) - - - (28.72) - (28.72) 
Total- Net (D=A-C) 2,166.52 381.71 589.65 - 3137.88 0.10 3137.98 
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11 Other financial assets 

The Company has categorised an the components under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of 

Ind AS 109. 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Loans to Employees 

Advances to Employees 

Loans & Advances to Holding! Subsidiary 

Security Deposits 
Advance paid towards variation margin 

Recoverable from Govt. of India 
- Towards GoI Fully Serviced Bonds 

Other amounts recoverable 
Less: Impairment Loss allowance 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 

12 Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 
Advance Income-tax & TOS 

Provision for Income Tax 

Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand under contest 

Current tax assets (Net) 

13 Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Total (A to G) 

Sub~Total 

Sub~Total 

(~ in Crores) 
As at 31~12~2023 As at 31~03·2023 

59.91 44.56 

0.78 0.49 

9.99 10.24 

1.23 1.03 

8.28 -

24,652.42 24,318.29 

122.66 120.39 

(87.26) (94.72) 

35.40 25.67 

24,768.01 24,400.28 

(~in Crores 
As at 31-12·2023 As at 31·03·2023 

5,408.02 2,946.71 

(5,061.93) (2,655.88) 

346.09 290.83 

5.20 5.20 

(0.25) (0.25) 

4.95 4.95 

351.04 295.78 

(~ in Crores) 
As at 31-12-2023 A. at 31·()3..2023 

3,099.85 3,276.99 



14 Property, Plant &: Equipment and Intangible Assets 

\' ... ,'-''''=} Piltticulars Property, Plant &: Equipment Capital Work·in· Intangible Other Intangible 

~inC 

Progress Assets under ,...... 
Development 

Freehold Land Right-of-Use Buildings !'Ianl" Fumiture& EDP Office Vehicles ToW Immovable Computer Computer 
Lmd equipment ......... Equipments Equipmenls Prop"", Soflw~ Soflw~ 

Gross carrying value 
-As at 31.O3.lO22 110.39 ". " ... , 19.90 67.41 " ... 2338 0." 677.96 6.1)7 14.66 Additions 0.16 2.29 4.08 5.23 0.03 11.79 0.81 om Borrowings Cost Capitalised 

Disposals 0.98 U7 1.69 '.04 As aI31.12.2022 110.39 159 430.83 20.06 68.72 ".77 26.92 0.43 685.71 6Jl8 14.61 As at 31.03.2023 110.39 IS' 4'..,0 20.06 67.34 23." "'78 0.54 705.58 '72 - 14.67 
Additions 0.36 1.64 6.71 5.24 0.16 14.11 '.72 
Borrowings Cost Capitalised 

0.32 
Disposalsl Adjustments 1.59 1.SO 4.36 om 1.16 
As at 31.12.2023 110.39 ... 456." 20.42 67.39 28.89 25.66 0.69 111.93 6.16 14.67 
Acl;Ulll,ulated depredation! amortisation 

As at 31.O3.lO22 037 13.51 0.95 10.64 16.81 11.64 037 54.29 10Al 
Charge for the period om 5.16 0.96 4.4. 2.57 2.46 0.02 15.66 2.18 
Adjustment for disposals - 0.27 U16 0.99 0.01 2.33 
Asat31.12.2022 030 18.61 1.91 14.85 18.32 13.11 030 61.62 12.59 
As at 31.03.2023 03. 20>1 2.23 153. 16.27 11.40 038 6M7 13.05 
Charge for the period 0.01 5.41 0.97 4.51 '.06 2.70 0.02 16.14 1.00 
Adjustment for disposals (0.01) 0.56 1.16 2.23 (0.01) 3.93 
As at 31.12.2023 0.41 26.02 "0 19.40 18.17 11.87 0.41 79." 14.05 

Net block as at 31JJ3.2023 110.39 1.20 436.29 11.83 51.95 7.71 13.38 0.16 638.91 m 1.62 
Net block as at 31.12.2023 110.39 1.18 430." 17.22 41.99 10.72 13.79 0,. 632.45 6.76 0.62 



15 Other non~financial assets 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Capital Advances 

Other Advances 

Balances with Govt. Authorities 

Pre~Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 

Prepaid Expenses 

Deferred Employee Benefits 

Other Assets 
Total (A to G) 

16 Assets Classified as Held for Sale 

Particulars 
Assets Classified as Held for Sale-Building 

Total 

As at 31·12·2023 

As at 31-12-2023 

(~in Crores 
As at 31-D3-2023 

6.80 7.26 

41.87 4.50 

33.92 26.11 
. 7.70 

29.58 13.23 

15.09 10.84 

0.01 0.01 

127.27 69.65 

{~in Crores 
As at 31-03-2023 

0.05 0.34 

0.05 0.34 



17 Debt Securities 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(Ui) 
(iv) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(Ui) 

(C) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ti) 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31.12.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost 

Secured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,955.00 2,001.40 1,955.00 2,029.81 
54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 40,601.45 41,574.53 35,866.55 37,124.32 
Tax Free Bonds 9,418.02 9,565.49 10,307.08 10,671.07 
Bond Application Money pending allotment 530.44 527.52 1,720.36 1,719.42 
Sub-total (A) 52,504.91 53,668.94 49,848.99 51,544.62 

Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,69,675.29 1,75,770.44 1,48,262.70 1,52,705.20 
Infrastructure Bonds 3.96 9.22 3.96 8.63 
Foreign Currency Bonds 29,506.33 29,411.43 32,886.78 32,690.54 
Sub-total (B) 1,99,185.58 2,05,191.09 1,81,153.44 1,85,404.37 
Unsecured Short-Term Debt Securities 

Commercial Paper 2,985.00 2,949.84 - -
Sub-total (C) 2,985.00 2,949.84 - -
Total- Debt Securities (A+B+C) 2,54,675.49 2,61,809.87 2,31,002.43 2,36,948.99 

Debt Securities issued in! outside India 

Debt Securities in India 2,25,169.16 2,32,398.44 1,98,115.65 2,04,258.45 
Debt Securities outside India 29,506.33 29,411.43 32,886.78 32,690.54 

Total - Debt Securities 2,54,675.49 2,61,809.87 2,31,002.43 2,36,948.99 

18 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 
(iv) 

(v) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ti) 

The Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of 

Ind AS 109. 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31.12.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

Principal Ols Amortised Cost Principal Ols Amortised Cost 

Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings 

Term Loans from Banks 55,204.27 55,422.60 56,298.20 56,402.09 
Term Loans from Financiallnstitutions 11,300.00 11,322.89 6,000.00 6,000.64 
Term Loan in Foreign Currency 62,121.12 61,948.67 45,553.26 45,263.52 
Tenn Loans from Govt. of India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10,122.31 10,000.00 10,325.12 
Lease Liability - - 0.02 0.02 
Sub-total (A) 1,38,625.39 1,38,816.47 1,17,851.48 1,17,991.39 

Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings 

FCNR (B) Loans 24,423.45 24,434.97 15,424.22 15,427.63 
Short Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 10,680.50 10,700.20 3,600.00 3,607.52 

Overdrafts/ Cash Credit repayable on demand from Banks - . 87.59 87.59 
Sub-total (B) 35,103.95 35,135.17 19,111.81 19,122.74 

Total- Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) (A to B) 1,73,729.34 1,73,951.64 1,36,963.29 1,37,114.13 

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) inJ outside India 

Borrowings in India 1,11,608.22 1,12,002.97 91,410.03 91,850.61 
Borrowings outside India 62,121.12 61,948.67 45,553.26 45,263.52 

Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 1,73,729.34 1,73,951.64 1,36,963.29 1,37,114.13 



19 Subordinated Liabilities 

The Company has categorised all subordinated liabilities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Particulars 

115th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds-

8.06% Redeemable at par on 31.05.2023 

175th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds -

8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 
199th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds -

7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030 

Total- Subordinated Liabilities 

Subordinated Liabilities inJ outside India 

Borrowings in India 

Borrowings outside India 

Total- Subordinated Liabilities 

(f in Crores) 

As at 31.12.2023 As at 31.03.2023 

Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost 
- - 2,500.00 2,668.34 

2.151.20 2,276.87 2,151.20 2,079.90 

1,999.50 2,036.02 1,999.50 2,025.06 

4,150.70 4,312.89 6,650.70 6,773.30 

4,150.70 4,312.89 6,650.70 6,773.30 

- - - -
4,150.70 4,312.89 6,650.70 6,773.30 



20 Other Financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(B) 

Particulars 

Unpaid Dividends 

Unpaid Principal &: Interest on Bonds 

~ Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 

~ Interest on Bonds 

Sub-total (B) 

Advance received towards variation margin (C) 

(0) Funds Received from Govt. of India for Disbursement as Subsidy! 

(E) 

(F) 

Grant (cumulative) 
Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 

Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy! Grant 

Payables towards Bonds Fully serviced by Govt. of India 

Other liabilities 

Total (A to F) 

21 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions for 

(A) Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 

Earned Leave Liability 

Post Retirement Medical Benefits 

Medical Leave Liability 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 

Long Service Award 

Incentive 

Others 

(B) Others 

Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 

22 Other Non-financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 

Particulars 

Income Received in Advance 

Sundry Liabilities Account (Funded Interest Capitalisation) 

Vnbilled Liability towards Capital Account 

Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 

Statutory Dues 

Total (A to E) 

Sub-total (A) 

Sub-total (8) 

Total (A+B) 

As at 31-12-2023 

As at 31-12-2023 

As at 31-12-2023 

(~in Crores 
As at 31"()3-2023 

7.12 6.79 

29.01 25.66 

12.56 11.17 

41.57 36.83 

2,203.93 -
96,282.52 96,263.30 

3.62 3.12 

(96,258.95) (96,238.70) 

27.19 27.72 

24,652.42 24,318.29 

463.87 784.95 

27,396.10 25,174.58 

(~in Crores 
As at 31"()3·2023 

0.23 2.68 

29.87 27.49 

- -
20.78 20.61 

2.25 1.76 

4.55 4.17 

3.24 2.89 

31.31 33.47 

1.27 2.00 

93.50 95.07 

21.52 15.87 

21.52 15.87 

115.02 110.94 

(~ in Crores) 
As at 31"()3·2023 

0.12 -
48.15 2.80 

48.38 48.38 

99.23 12.45 

36.05 34.94 

231.93 98.57 



23 Equity Share Capital 

Particulafii 

Authorised: 
Equity shares of t 10 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 
Fully paid up Equity shares of t 10 each 

Total 

24 Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Particulars 

Fully paid up Perpetual Debts Instrument entirely equity in nature of t 10 lakhs each 

ToW 

25 Other Equity 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ill) 

(iv) 

M 
(vi) 

(H) 

(C) 

Particulafii 

Other Reserves 

Special Reserve created uls 36(1) (vill) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

Reserve for Bad and doubtful debts U/S 36(1)(viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

Statutory Reserve U/S 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Securities Premium 

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account 

General Reserve 

Retained Earnings 

Other Comprehensive Income (Oa) 

• Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 

_ Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 

- Cost of Hedging reserve 

Total- Other Equity 

As at 31.12.2023 

No. of Shares Amount 

5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 

As at 31.12.2023 

Number Amount 

5,584 558.40 

5,584 558.40 

As aI31.12.2023 

27,264.72 

504.43 

10,026.87 

1,577.53 

(706.41) 

11,978.44 

12,282.17 

(59.54) 

42.85 

(1,315.59) 

61,595.47 

(~. C on rores 
As at 31.03.2023 

No.o£ Shares Amount 

5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 

2,63...32,24,000 2,633.22 

,in C rores) 

As at 31.03.2023 

NUD\ber Amount 

5,584 558.40 

5~84 558.40 

(t· C m rores 
As at 31.03.2023 

24,977.89 

8,025.15 

1,577.53 

(790.44) 

11,978.44 

9,930.77 

(101.47) 

600.05 

(1,709.87) 

54,488.05 



26 Interest Income 

(A) 

(i) 

(il) 

(B) 

Ii) 

(e) 

(i) 

(0) 

(i) 

(ij) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Particulars 

Interest on Loan Assets 

Long term financing 
Short term financing 

Sub· total (A) 

Interest Income hom Investments 

Interest from Long Term Invesbnents 

Sub-total (B) 

Interest on Deposits with Banks 

Interest from Deposits 

Sub-total (e) 

Other Interest Income 
Interest on Delayed Payments by Borrowers 

Interest from Staff Advances 

Interest on Mobilisation Advance 

Unwinding of Discount of Security Deposits 

Sub-total (0) 

Total· Interest Income (A to D) 

27 Dividend Income 

Particulars 
- Dividend from Subsidiary Company 

- Dividend from Other Investments 

Total- Dividend Income 

28 Fees and Commission Income 

Particulars 
Fees based Income 

Prepayment Premium 

Feel Other Income for Implementation of Gavt. Schemes 
Total· Fees and Commission Income 

29 Other Income 

Particulars 
Net gain! (loss) on disposal of assets classified as held for sale 

Rental Income 

Fees from Training Courses 

Miscellaneous Income 
Total - Other Income 

Period ended 31·12·2023 

On Flnandal On Financial On Finandal 
Assets measwed Assets measmed Assets measured at 

at Fair Value at Amortised Cost Fair Value through 
throughOCI Profit or Loss 

31,654.89 
1,835.37 

- 33,490.26 

- 129.66 45.05 

129.66 45.05 

- 250.97 

- 250.97 

106.54 

3.87 

0.18 

-
- 110,59 -
- 33,981,48 45,05 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

23.40 
0.81 

24,21 

Period ended 31·12·2023 

42.48 

46.69 

54.49 
143.66 

Period ended 31·12·2023 

1.32 

13.59 

10.05 

12.72 
37,68 

(~ in Crores) 
Period ended 31·12·2022 

On Financial On Finandal On Financial 
Assets measured Assets measured Assets measured at 

at Fair Value at Amortised Cos t Fair Value through 
through OCI Profit or Loss 

28,255.29 

201.01 

- 28 ... 456.30 -

- 111.42 2157 
111.42 21.57 

81.50 

81.50 

168.39 -
2.30 -
0.20 -
om 

- 170.90 -
- 28 .. 820.12 21.57 

(" c m rores 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

14.77 

957 

24.34 

(~ in Crares) 
Period ended 31.12·2022 

90.97 

36.44 

25.27 
152.68 

(~in Crores) 
Period ended 31·12·2022 

3.28 

12.81 

7.06 

10.83 

33.98 



30 Finance Costs 
Finance Costs have been incurred on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

('. c on rores 
Particulars Period ended 31·12·2023 Period ended 31-12-2022 

Ii) Interest on BOlTowings 

· Loans from Govt. of India (NSSF) 619.69 619.69 
· Loans from Banks! Financiallnstitutions 4,084.06 2,753.69 
- External Commercial Borrowings 3,429.14 1,116.88 

Sub-Total (i) 8,132.89 4,490.26 
(il) Interest on Debt Securities 

· Domestic Debt Securities 11,196.69 9,888.62 
· Foreign Currency Debt Securities 1,209.50 1,073.41 
- Commercial Paper 100.47 

Sub-Total (ii) 12.,506.66 10,962.03 
(iii) Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 

- Subordinate Bonds 335.71 404.63 
Sub-Total (iii) 335.71 404.63 

(iv) Other Interest Expense 

- Swap Premium 1,026.43 1,379.18 
. Interest on Variation Margin 55.51 
. Interest on liability towards employee benefits (3.66) 4.22 

Sub-Total (iv) 1,078.28 1.383.40 
Total- Finance Costs 22,053.54 17,240.32 

Less: Finance Costs Capitalised (0.32) 

Total - Finance Costs (Net) 22,053.22 17,240.32 

31 Net translation! transaction exchange loss! (gain) 

(~in Crores) 
Particulars Period ended 31·12·2023 Period ended 31-12-2022 

" Net translation/ transaction exchange loss! (gain) 106.62 1,144.25 
Total 106.62 1,144.25 

The figures above mclude amortisatlfJll of net translatwn! rransactwn exchange /nssl (gam) on umg Term Foreign Currency Monetary Items recognISed m the finanCial statements before 
1st April 2018 amounting to (196.28 crores (Previous year (67.08 crores). 

32 Fees and commission expense 

0) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Iv) 

Particulars 
Guarantee Fee 
Listing and Trusteeship Fee 

Agency Fees 

Credit Rating Expenses 
Other Finance Charges 

Total (i to v) 

33 Net GainJ (loss) on Fair Value Changes 

Particu1;m 
(A) Net gainI (loss) on financial instruments at Fair Value 

through profit or loss 
(i) On trading Portfolio 

(ii) Others 
- Changes in fair value of Derivatives 

- Changes in fair value of Long Tenn Investments 

• Changes in fair value of ShorHenn MF investments 
Sub·total (Ii) 

Tolal(A) 

Breakup of Fair Value Changes 
-Realised 

- Unrealised 
Total Net Gain! (loss) on Fair Value Changes 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

1.28 

0.04 

0.96 

3.01 
10.09 

15.38 

283.46 

53.27 

2.03 

338.76 
338.76 

629.80 
(291.04) 

338.76 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

(~ in CroTes) 

2.19 

0.05 

0.91 

2.67 
5.53 

11.35 

(~in Crores) 

91.15 
(15.36) 

0.29 
76.08 

76.08 

94.54 
(18.46) 

76.08 



34 Impairment on financial instruments 

Particulars Period ended 31·12·2023 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

. Loans ~ 

. Investments 

- Others 

On financial instruments 

-
-
-

Total (i+ii) -

On financial instruments 
(653.47) 

-
6.95 

(646.52) . ' mcludes ( 5.63 crores (PrevIOus penod '( -0.61 CTores) towards Impamnent allowance on Letter of Comfort . 

35 Employee Benefits Expense 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 

- Salaries and Allowances 

- Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 

- Rent towards Residential Accomodation for Employees 

- Staff Welfare Expenses 

Total 

36 Depreciation and amortization 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 

- Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 
- Amortization on Intangible Assets 

Total 

37 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 

- Direct Expenditure 

-Overheads 

Total 

38 Other Expenses 

particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 

- Travelling and Conveyance 

- Publicity & Promotion Expenses 

- Repairs and Maintenance 

- Rent, taxes and energy costs 

-Insurance Charges 

- Communication costs 

- Printing & stationery 

- Director's sitting fees 
- Auditors' fees and expenses 

- Legal & Profeasional Charges 
- Net Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 

- Training And Conference Expense 

- Govt. Scheme Monitoring Expenses 

- Other Expenditure 
Total 

39 Tax Expense 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 

- Current tax expense 
- Current tax expense/ (benefit) pertaining to earlier years 

Sub-total - Current Tax 

- Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 
Total 

we m rores) 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

On financial instruments 

95.42 
23.80 

4.70 

30.35 
154,27 

16.74 

1.00 
17.74 

126.28 

5.61 

131.89 

13.25 

13.05 

18.31 

4.04 

0.16 

1.79 

1.03 

0.39 

1.40 

7.94 

3.78 

12.37 

6.58 
21.28 

105.37 

2A04.85 

2A04.85 

225.11 

2,629.96 

On financial instruments 

429.55 
-
- 5.01 

- 434,56 

we m rorcs 
Period ended 31-12·2022 

114.74 

13.30 

3.96 

24.44 

156.44 

(tinC rores 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

15.66 

2.18 

17.84 

(~inC rores 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

109.92 

4.97 

114.89 

we m rores 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

10.25 

4.9Q 

14.22 

4.24 

0.14 
1.82 

0.80 

0.29 

0.75 

9.11 

1.66 

6.93 

9.64 
16.82 

81.57 

(~ in Crores) 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

1,952.04 

(147.29) 

1,804.75 

69.07 
1,873.82 



r 

40 Earnings per Share 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 Period ended 31-]2-2022 

Numerator 

Profit for the period from continuing operations as per 10,002.91 8,053.73 
Statement of Profit and Loss (~in Crares)· 
Profit for the period from discontinued operations as per 
Statement of Profit and Loss (~ in Crares)· 
Profit for the period from continuing and discontinued 10,002.91 8,053.73 

operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss (~in Crores)" 

O~n2mini!tQ:r 

Weighted average Number of equity shares 2,63,32,24,000 2,63,32,24,000 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in ~ for an equity share of 37.99 30.59 

~ 10 each) (fof continuing operations) 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in ~ for an equity share of -
f 10 each) (for discontinued operations) 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in ~ for an equity share of 37.99 30.59 
~ 10 each) (for continuing and discontinued operations) 

.. The profit denotes Proft after Tax less coupon expenses (net of taxes) of (0 craTes (PrevIOus period (0 crores) on Perpetual Debt Instruments entrzrely equIty In nature. 



REC Limited 
Registered Office· Core4, SCOPE Complex, " Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOIOO5095 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2023 

S.No. Particulars 

ASSETS 
(t) Financial Assets 

('1 Cash and cash equivalents 

(hI Bank balances other than (a) above 

(el Trade receivables 

(dl Derivative financial instruments 

('I Lo~ 

(fj Investments 

(gl Other financial assets 

Total· Fillimcial Assets (1) 

{2l Non-Financial Assets 

('1 Current tax assets (net) 

(hI Deferred tax assets (net) 

(el Property, Plant & Equipment 

{dl Capital Work-in·Progress 

('1 Other Intangible Assets 

(fj Other non-financial assets 
Total- NOIl-Finallcial Assets (2) 

(3) Assets classified as held for sale 
Total ASSETS (1+2+3) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
(t) financial Liabilities 

('1 Derivative financial instruments 

(hI Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of MSMEs 

(ti) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 

('I Debt Serorities 

(dl Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

('1 Subordinated Liabilities 

(fj Other financial liabilities 
Total- Financial Liabilities (1) 

{2l Non-financial Liabilities 

('1 Current tax liabilities (net) 

(hI Provisions 

(el Other non·financial liabilities 
Total- NOII"Financial Liabilities (2) 

(3) liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held fur sale 

(4) EQUITY 

(.1 Equity Share Capital 

(hI Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature 

(el Other equity 
Total- Equity (4) 

Total- LlABILm£S AND EQlll1Y (1+2+3+4) 

Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 23rd January 2024 

Note 

No. 

6 

7 

8 , 
10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

15 

15 

16 

17 

, 
18 

18 

19 

20 
21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

11 

26 

27 

28 

1105 

(~ in Crores) 
.t .t 

3H2-2023 31...Q3..2023 

1,514.42 48.70 
899.97 2,346.91 
163.60 113.00 

11,340.87 8,981.61 
4,87,251.63 4,22,083.91 

4,430.55 3,170.00 
24,936.03 24,422.54 

5,30,537.07 4,61,166.67 

357.64 305.95 
3,118.43 3,307.56 

633.27 639.17 
6.76 2.72 

0.62 1.63 

180.84 74.40 
4,.297.56 4,331.43 

11.04 4.65 

5,34,845.67 4,65,502.15 

1,511.81 976.95 

61.08 41.68 
2,61,764.12 2,36,902.33 

1,73,951.64 1,37,114.13 

4,312.89 6,773.30 

27,600.52 25,345.11 

4,69,202.06 4,01,153.50 

3.45 10.65 

115.29 111.62 

233.47 106.45 

352.21 218.12 

0.02 

2,633.22 2,633.22 

558.40 558.40 

62,099.78 54,928.89 

65,291.40 58,120.51 

5,34,845.61 4,65,502.75 

Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman &: Managing Director 
DIN -013m12 



REC Limited 
Registered Office - CorM, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhl-llOOO3, CIN: L40101DL1969GOIOO5095 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st December, 2023 

S.No. Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 

(i) Interest Income 

(ii) Dividend fncome 

(iii) Fees and Commission Income 

(iv) Net gainl (loss) on fair value changes 

(v) Sale of services 

I. Total Revenue from Operations (i to v) 

!l. Other Income 

lll. Total Income ([tIl) 

Expenses 

(i) Finance Costs 

(ii) Net translation! transaction exchange loss 

(iii) Fees and commission Expense 

(iv) Impainnent on financial instruments 

(v) Cost of services rendered 

(vi) Employee Benefits Expenses 

(vii) Depreciation and amortlzation 

(viii) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 

(ix) Other Expenses 

IV. Total Expenses Ii to ix) 

v. Profit before Tax UII-IV) 

VI. Tax Expense 

(I) CunentTax 

- Current Year 

- Earlier Years 

(ii) Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expense (itli) 

Vll. Profit for the period 

VIll. Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) 

(I) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(,) Re-measurement gains/(Iosses) on defined benefit plans 

- Tax impact on above 

(h) Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments 

- Tax impact on above 

Iii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

(,) Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 

- Tax impact on above 

(h) Cost of hedging reserve 

- Tax impact on above 

Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period (itii) 

IX. Total comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIlI) 

XC Bilsk & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share of ~ 10 each (in :0 

(I) For continuing operations 

(2) For discontinued operations 

(3) For continuing and discontinued operations 

Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd January 2024 

Note 

No. 

29 

30 

31 

37 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

... 

.. 

Sub-Total (j) 

Sub-Total (ii) 

" 

ltoS 

(~in Crorcs) 

Period ended Period ended 

31-12-2023 31-1.2-2022 

34,041.28 28,847.89 

0.81 9.57 

143.66 152.68 

338.76 76.08 

303.06 148.98 

34,827,57 29,235,20 

37.00 30.33 

34,864.57 29,265.53 

22,052.03 17,237.11 

106.62 1,144.25 

15.38 11.35 

(645.92) 451.95 

174.03 31.56 

171.% 174.86 

17.97 17.98 

132.93 115.84 

109.11 84.19 

22,.134.11 19,269.09 

12.730,46 9,996.44 

2,425.39 1,976.96 

1.60 (147.29) 

237.10 65.16 

2.661.09 1,894,83 

10,066.37 8,101.61 

4.78 (2.36) 

(1.20) 059 

43.69 (44.38) 

(6.82) (0.32) 

40.45 (46.47) 

(744.60) 479.36 

187.tID (120.64) 

526.89 (2575.34) 

(I32.61) 648.16 

(162.92.) (1568,46) 

(122.47) (1,614.93) 

9,943.90 6,486.68 

38.23 30.77 

38.23 30.77 

Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN - 01377212 



A Equity share capital 

P """""" 
Balance at the beginning of the period 

Changes in equity share capital during the period· 

Balance at the end of the period 

RECLimited 
Registered Office - C0re-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, lOOm Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOIOO5095 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st December, 2023 

As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

2.'33.22 

2.'33.22 

During the previous period, the Company has issued 65,83,(16,000 equity shares of Ii! 10 each as fully paid-up bonus shares in the ntio of 1 (One) equity share for every 3 (Three) equity share outstanding on the record date i.e. 18th August 2022 

B Instruments entirely equity in nature 

PoutkuIan As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

Balance at the beginning of the period 558.40 

Changes in instruments entirely equity in nature during the period 

Balance at the end of the period 558.40 

C Other Equity 

Parti.culars Reserves &: Surplus Shan:- of Other FVOCI- Effective Costs of 
Special Reserve Reserve for Statutory Securities Capital Foreign General Impairment Retained Comprehensive Equity Portion of Hedging 
created uls 36(1) Bad and Reserve uls 45 Pmni= Reserve C~'" Reserve ,,-, ......... Income! OOli6) of Instruments Cash Flow re_, 

(vill) of the doubtful IC of Reserve Account Monetary Joint Venlure Hod ... 
Income Tax Act, debtsuls Bank of India It~ accounted for 

1961 36(1)(viia) of Act,1934 Translation using equity 

the Income Difference method 

Tax Act, 1961 Account 

Balance as at31&t March 2022 22,302.93 196.82 5,814.0(1 2)36.54 0.00 (555.29) 11,839.46 7,186.05 (37.98) 194.21 (395.95) 

Profit for the year 5,101.61 

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (1.77) 

RecQgnition through O<h~ Comprehensive (44.70) 355.72 (1,927.18) 

Income (net of taxes) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8,099.84 (44..70) 358.72 (1,927.18) 

Transferred. tol (from) Retained Earnings 1,983.91 1,611.15 (3,595.06) 

Transferred to General Reserve (196.82) 196.52 

Reclassification of ",in! (loss) ~ salel 7.56 (7.56) 

extinguishment of FVOCl equity instnlment (net 

of taxes) 
Foreign Currency Translation Loss on long term (386.36) 

monetary items during the year 

Amortisation during the year 67.05 

Sub-Total 1,983.91 (196.82) 1,611.15 (319.28) 196.82 (3,587.50) (7.56) -
Dividends (2,264.57) 

Utilised for issue of Bonus Equity Shares (655.30) 

Expenses incurred on issue of Bonus Equity (0.71) 

ShM6 
Sub-total- Tl"ansaction with owners (659.01) (2,264.57) 

Balance as at 31st December 20.22 24,286.84 7,425.15 1,577.53 0.00 (874.57) 12,(136.28 ',433'" (90.24) 552.93 (2,323.13 

(::": in Crores) 

1,974.92 
",>0 

2,633.22 

~ in Crores 

558.40 

558.40 

(~in Crores 

ToW 

48,780.79 

5,101.61 

(1.77) 

(1,613.16) 

6,4&6.68 

(386.36) 

67.05 

(319.28) 

(2,264.57) 

(655.30) 

(0.71) 

(2'923~J 
52,024.61 



Special Reserve Reserve fot Statutory Securities Capital 
created uls 36(1) Bad and Reserve uls 4 l'remi= R~. 

(viii) of the doubtful Ie of Reserve Account 
Income Tax Ad, debtsuls Bank of India 

'96' 36(I)(vlia) of Ad,1934 

the Income 

Tax Ad, 1961 

8,025.15 1,577.53 0.00 

Y'M . 
Benefit Plans 

Oth~ Comprffiensive 

Income for the year 
to/ (from) Retained Earnings 2.286.83 504A3 2,001.72 

tol (from) General Reserve 

(loss) 00 sale/ 

ity instrument (net 

Loss on 

ns durin~ the year 
during the year 

U86~831 504:431 2,001:721 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 23rd January 2024 

Foreign Gmor.o1 Impairment Retained 
Cunency Reserve Reserve funin" 
Monetary 

1-
Translation 

Difference 

Account 

(790.44) 12,036.27 10,313.78 

10,()66.31 

358 

10,()69~951 
(506)1 

1%.28 

84.031 (4,798.04)1 

Share of Other FVOCI· 
Comprehensive Equity 
Income! Ooss) of Instruments 

Joint Venture 

accounted for 

using equity 
method 

36.87 

36.87 

5.06 

5.06 

Effective Costs of TobI 
Portion of Hedging 
Cash Flow re_. 

Hedges 

4:r---
Vivek Kumar Dewangan 

Chairman &: Managing Director 

DIN • 01377212 



RECLimited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOIO05095 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31st December 2023 

PARTICULARS 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 
Net Profit before Tax 

Adjustments for: 

1. Loss! (Gain) on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 

2. Loss/ (Gain) on derecognition of Assets held for sale (net) 

3. Depreciation & Amortization 

4. Impairment allowance on Assets Classified as Held for Sale 

5, Impairment losses on Financial Instruments 

6. Loss! (Gain) on Fair Value Changes (net) 

7. Effective Interest Rate (ElR) in respect of Loan Assets and Borrowings 

8, Interest on Commercial Paper 

9, Unrealised Foreign Exchange Translation Loss! (Gain) 

10. liabilities written back 

11. Interest on Inveshnents 

Operating profit before Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

1. Loan Assets 

2. Derivatives 

3. Other Financial and Non- Financial Assets 

4. Other Financial and Non- Financial Liabilities & Provisions 

Cash flow from Operations 

1. Income Tax Paid (including IDS) 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

1. Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 

2. Sale of assets held for sale 

3. Investment in Property, Plant & Equipment (incl. CWIP & Capital Advances) 
4. Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets under development 

& Capital Advances) 

5. Finance Costs Capitalised 

6. Sale! (Investment) in Equity Shares 

7. Redemptionl (Investment) in High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) (net) 

8. Redemption! (Investment) in Debt Securities other than HQLAs (net) 

9. Sale!{Investment) of lin shares of associate companies (Net) 

10. Maturity/(Investment) of!in Corporate and Term deposits 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

1. Issue! (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (net) 

2. Issue! (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) 

3. Raising! (Repayments) of Rupee Term Loansl WCDL from Banksl Fis (net) 

4. Raising! (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and Borrowings (net) 

5. Expenses on issue of Bonus Equity Shares 

6. Raising! (Redemption) of Subordinated Liabilities (net) 

7. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares 

8. Repayment towards Lease Liability 

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the oeriod 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23rd January 2024 

(~in Crores 

Period ended 31-12-2023 Period ended 31-12-2022 

12,730.46 

3.79 

(1.32) 

17.97 

(0.09) 

(645.92) 

(336.73) 

(7.77) 

100.47 

(59234) 

(2.46) 

(25.32) 

11,240.74 

(63,082.85) 

356.65 

(897.85) 

3,651.06 

(48,732.25) 

(2,487.07) 

0.07 

1.61 

(18.19) 

-

(0.32) 

3.34 

(448.02) 

(532.57) 

(6.58) 

36.01 

24.068.51 

2,849.37 

11,286.57 

20,889.89 

-
(2,500.00) 

(2,857.05) 

(0.02) 

9,996.44 

1.66 

(3.28) 

17.99 

-
451.95 

(75.79) 

(28.86) 

-
1,551.58 

1.30 

(21.01) 

11,891.98 

(26,556.69) 

628.99 

709.64 

(738.85) 

(14,064.94) 

(2,245.02) 

(51,219.32) (16,309.96) 

0.05 

3.56 

(12.03) 

(0.01) 

-
10.13 

(457.82) 

(184.74) 

(8.14) 

(15.99) 

(964.64) (665.00) 

1,797.93 

-
10,482.79 

7,030.08 

(0.71) 

-
(2,264.56) 

-
53,737.27 17,045.53 

1,553.30 70.57 

(38.89) 140.99 

1,514.41 211,56 

v;~ 
Chairman & Managing Diredor 

DIN - 01377212 



RECLimited 

Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003 

CIN: L40101DL1969GOI005095 

Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company" or the "holding company") was incorporated in the year 

1969. The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and 

principal place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-ll0003, India. 

The books of accounts are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plot no. 1-4, Sector-29, 

Gurugram, Haryana, in addition to the registered office of the Company. The Company has 

offices spread across the country, mainly in the State Capitals and one training centre at 

Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in extending financial assistance 

across the power sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or 

Holding) Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 

Being an NBFC, the company is regulated by Reserve Bank of India. 

The company has been accorded with the status of a 'Maharatna' Central Public Sector Enterprise 

by the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance. 

REC is a leading infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are 

interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments 

and Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. 

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE 

Limited. Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

The Company together with its subsidiaries is hereinafter referred to as 'the Group'. 

2. Basis of Preparation 
These Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose of 

inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the group and 

complies with the measurement principles laid down under Ind AS notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines including those 

issued by RBI. 

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31" December 2023 were authorized 

and approved by the Board of Directors on 23'" January 2024. 

3. Material Accounting Policies 
The material accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements 

are as given below: 



3.1 Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiary 
Subsidiary is the entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power 

over the investee, is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement w-ith the 

entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial 

statements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on 

which control commences until the date on which control ceases. The Group combines the 

financial statements of the holding company and its subsidiary line by line adding together like 

items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. 

Equity accounted investees 
The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise of the interests in associates and 

joint venture. 

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity, over which the Company has 

significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Interests in 

associates are accounted for using the equity method. These interests are initially recognised at 

cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated 

financial statements include the Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive 

Income (OCI) of equity-accounted investees until the date on which significant influence ceases. 

However, in case where it is assessed that the investment! interest in associates is held for sale, 

the interest in associates is accounted for under Ind AS 105. 

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net 

assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

Interests in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised 

at cost which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated 

financial statements include the Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive 

Income (OCI) of equity-accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint 

control ceases. 

3.2 Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 

intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity 

accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in 

the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the 

extent that here is no evidence of impairment. 

3.3 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following 

accrual system of accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and 

financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. 

These policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented in the consolidated 

financial statements. 

/~~d%i~~ //(:~y 0 
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Functional and presentation currency 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INK) which is also the 

functional currency of the Group. 

3.4 Income recognition 

Interest income 
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount 

outstanding and rate applicable. 

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) 

costs and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) 

overdue interest including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being 

adjusted first, except for credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is 

appropriated only after the complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal 

interest and overdue interest including interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time 

Settlement (OrS)/ Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (mC) proceedings are appropriated first 

towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery thereafter, towards interest and other 

charges, if any. 

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective 

interest rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is 

recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is 

disclosed separately under the head interest income. 

Interest income on credit-impaired loan assets, unless realized, is not being recognised as a 

matter of prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of stressed assets. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire 

interest amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted 

against the corresponding interest income. 

Income from Government schemes 
Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on accrual basis based on the 

services rendered. 

Dividend income 
Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into 

account on accrual basis when right to receive payment is established. 

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as 

established only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General 

Meeting. 

yv;;:-,,~:~ -.!,~ ~:(~~ " .. " 1° ,I 
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Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is 

recognised separately under the head 'Dividend Income'. 

Other services 
Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for 

on accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Group in the year of receipt. 

Revenue from sale of services 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

The Group uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115 to determine that how much and 

when revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues etc. 

In accordance with the same, revenue is recognised through a five-step approach: 

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer; 

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract; 

(iii) Determine the transaction price; 

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and 

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied. 

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 

discounts and other indirect taxes. 

In Cost Plus Contracts - Revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of 

expenditures plus proportionate margin as per contract; 

In Fixed Price Contracts - Revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the 

contract. The Group has assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of 

the total time expected to complete the performance obligation to that has lapsed at the end of the 

reporting period, which is an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of 

these performance obligations under Ind AS 115. 

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances 

change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit 

or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by 

management. 

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects 

put on tariff based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the 

ultimate collection of the professional charges will be made. 

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective SPY and sale 

proceeds of Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accounted 

as income of the Group. 



3.5 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection vvith the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or 

construction of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its 

intended use, are capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period 

to get ready for its intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as 

per the effective interest rate method. 

3.6 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the period. 

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.7 Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re­

measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates 

are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items 

recognized in the consolidated financial statements before 01" April 2018, such gains and losses 

are accumulated in a IJForeign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and 

amortized over the balance period of such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or 

expense in each of such periods. 

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost 

(translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 

3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Land 
Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be 

determined, related carrying amounts are not amortized. 

Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as 

finance lease and is amortized over the lease term. 

Other Tangible assets 
PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any 

costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be 



Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 

flow to the Group beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as 

prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is 

in use for more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/· 

is provided @ 100%. 

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each 

financial year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes ,in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

De-recognition 
An item of PPE and any Significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or 

when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 

on de-recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

Capital Work-in-Progress 
The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as 'Capital work-in­

progress: The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and 

directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any 

trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the 

acquisition/ construction of PPE which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified 

under 'Capital Advances: 

3.9 Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such assets are recognized where it is probable 

that the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the Group. 

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value) 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the 

estimated useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the 

intangible asset may be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are 

reviewed at each reporting date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting 

estimates. Management estimates the useful life of intangible assets to be five years. 



Intangible Assets under Development 
Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as 

'Intangible assets under development' till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid 

for the acquisition! development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet 

date are classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Derecognition of Intangible Assets 
An intangible asset is derecogruzed on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, 

measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3.10 Lease accounting: 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former 

operating leases except for those identified as short-term or low-value lease. 

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is 

defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying 

asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration'. 

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations 

which are whether: 
the contract contains an identiIied asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or 

implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group 

the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 

identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope 

of the contract 
the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. 

The Group assess whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset is 

used throughout the period of use. 

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on 

the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial 

measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of 

any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made 

in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease 

commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end 

of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such 

indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the 



Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to 

be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably 

certain to be exercised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and 

increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are 

changes in in-substance fixed payments. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of­

use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

3.11 Assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A 

sale is considered as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the 

Group; are available for immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed 

for sale at a price and the sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of 

the date of classification. Such assets are measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less 

selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are not 

depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

Where the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an entity, it classifies 

investment in the entity (i.e. all the assets and liabilities of that entity) as held for sale. 

3.12 Financial Instruments 
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value 

adjusted by transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which 

are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial 

liabilities is described below. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following 

categories upon initial recognition: 

• Amortized cost 
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCl) 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or at FVOCI are subject to review for impairment at 

least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 



asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are 

applied to each category of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortized cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (ErR) if both of the 

following conditions are met: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 

to collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Impairment Allowance (expected credit loss) is recognized on financial assets carried at 

amortized cost. 

Modification of cash flows 
When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and 

the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the 

Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification 

gain or loss in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated 

as the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at 

the financial asset's original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying 

amount of the modified financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the 

modified financial asset. 

Financial assets at FVTPL 
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for 

amortized cost classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain 

conditions and are deSignated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial 

instruments also fall into this category, except for those deSignated and effective as hedging 

instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are 

measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of 

financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or 

using a valuation technique where no active market exists. 

Embedded derivatives 
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non­

derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument 

vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of 

the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a 

speCified interest rate, foreign exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a 

non-financial variable, it is not specifiC to a party to the contract. 

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and 

recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of 

the host contracts or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host 

contracts are not held for trading fair value though profit or loss. These 
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embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit 

or loss, unless deSignated as effective hedging instruments. 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity 

investment classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains 

and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and reported within the FVOCI reserve 

within equity, except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no 

recycling of such gains and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the 

derecognition of the investment. However, the Group may transfer the same within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and 

conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with 

the difference reCOgnized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss 

has not already been recorded. 

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar 

financial assets) are derecognized (Le. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when the 

contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the 

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Group also 

derecognizes the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer 

qualifies for derecognition. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or deSignated at FVTPL, that are carried 

subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. 

Derecognition of jinancialliabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability 

and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 

recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Hedge accounting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following 

requirements: 

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 

relationship 
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- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the entity actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the 

entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially 

at fair value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the 

hedge is effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in 

cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash 

flow hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. 

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a 

reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the 

hedge relationship, in accordance with the Group's risk management objective and strategies. 

The documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of 

risk(s) being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging 

effectiveness requirements. 

Fair Value Hedges 

In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the 

Statement of Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk 

hedged is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying 

amount of the hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the 

hedging instrument ceases to exit. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value 

is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.13 Impairment of financial assets 

Loan assets 
The Group follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss 

(ECL) based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

• Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime 

ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, 

Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PO) - The PO represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 



Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a 

default occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that 

will actually be lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the prinCipal outstanding, 

interest accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the 

time of default. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in detennining the 12-month and lifetime PD, 

EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. 

Financial assets other than Loans 
In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial 

assets has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal 

to 12cmonth expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial 

asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at 

the date of initial recognition. The Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, 

that is available without undue cost Of effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit 

risk since initial recognition. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not 

increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low 

credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

Write-offs 
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has 

stopped pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial Authority. 

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand depOSits, together with other 

short-term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily 

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 

in value. 

3.15 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as 

changes in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders' meeting and 

the Board of Directors respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments 

classified as equity are recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for 

payment by the Group. 

3.16 Material prior period errors 
Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts 

If the error occurred before the 



earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest 

period presented, are restated. 

3.17 Prepaid Expenses 
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition. 

3.18 Taxation 
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in 

OCI or directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in ocr or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax 

rates enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any 

adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 

computation of taxable income. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are 

expected to apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or 

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they 

relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be 

utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or 

expense in profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also 

recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively. 

3.19 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a 

paid annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end 

of the period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses 

payable within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 

related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured 

on an undiscounted basis. 



Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined 

contribution plans as under: 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions in respect 

of the employees into a separate fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay 

further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the 

Group towards defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which 

the contributions relate. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF) and 

Other Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit plans 

covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will 

receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and 

other defined parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if 

plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Group's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit 

credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting 

period. The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is 

the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBa) at the reporting date less the fair value 

of plan assets. Management estimates the DBa annually with the assistance of independent 

actuaries. 

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Comprehensive Income. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed mOre than 

one-year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by 

an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are 

determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such 

loans and transaction value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a 

straight-line basis over the expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected 

remaining period of the Loan, the unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change 

is amortised over the updated expected remaIning period of the loan on a prospective basis. 



3.20 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from 

the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be 

uncertain. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks 

and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their 

present valuesl where the time value of money is material. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the 

control of the Group or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the 

obligation cannot be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is 

considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party 

concerning the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, 

this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is 

probable, the related asset is disclosed. 

3.21 Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting 

date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, 

assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement 

of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 



The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated 

financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements regularly, 

the Group determines 'whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.22 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 

an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

3.23 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a 

business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately 

controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and that 

control is not transitory. 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for 

using the pooling of interest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, Of recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise Significant accounting policies. 

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated 

as if the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in 

the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is 

aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the 

transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the 

reserves of the transferee 

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional 

consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor 

is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 
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3.24 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account 

4. Implementation of New/ Modified Standards 

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind 

AS. The Group has analysed the impact of these amendments, which is not material to the Group. 

Further, MCA has not issued any new Ind-AS applicable to the company. 

5. Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of 

uncertainty 
The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make 

judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 

assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. The estimates and underlying assumptions are 

based on historical experience & other relevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Actual results may differ from these estimates, 

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in which the 

estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & future 

periods if it affects both current & future periods. 

Significant management judgments 
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be 

recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against 

which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Further, the Management has no intention to make 

withdrawal from the Special Reserve created and maintained under section 36(I)(viii) of the 

Income tax Act, 1961 and thus, the special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being 

reversed. Hence, the Group does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Reserves of Group Companies - The 

applicable tax laws provide for tax deduction in respect of dividend income from equity 

investments, to the extent of dividend declared by the Company to its shareholders during the 

year. Considering the historical information and dividend distribution policy of the Company, 

the Company does not expect any tax liability on the undistributed reserves of the Group 

Companies, as and when such reserves are distributed. Hence, the Company does not create any 

deferred tax liability on undistributed reserves of Group Companies. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of 

indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors 

which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Investment in SPVs - Transmission projects are managed as per the mandate from Government 

of India and the Group does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these 

projects unilaterally. The Group therefore considers its investment in respective SPVs as 

associates having Significant influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up 

equity share capital. 

f~nd~~ 
I \. De\\.,\-g~/,~~ 
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Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired loans - Interest income on credit­

impaired loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the outcome of 

resolutions of stressed assets. 

Significant estimates 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful 
lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the 
assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may 
change the utility of assets. . . 

Defined benefit obligation (DBa) - Management's estimate of the DBa is based on a nu:rnber of 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and 
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may Significantly impact 
the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value 
of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. 
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the 
extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 
hierarchy is used for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Significant estimates are involved in determining the prOvision for income taxes, 
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of 
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset. 

Expected Credit loss ('ECl') - The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for 
financial assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant 
assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of 
customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Group makes Significant judgments about the 
following while assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL: 

• Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk; 

• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type 

of product! market and the associated ECl; and 

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL. 

• Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts 

in case of default) 



Cash and cash equivalents 

In CrOTeS) 
Particulars As at 31-U-2023 As aI31..()3·2023 
- Cash on Hand (including imprest) 0.06 
_ Balances with Banks 

- in current accounts 549.91 41.01 
- deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 964A5 7,69 

ToW 1,514.42 48.70 

Bank Balan«s (other than Cash and Cash Equivalents) 

m rores 
Particulars As at 31-U-2023 As at 31..()3-2023 

- Earmarked Balances with Banks 

- For unpaid dividends 7.12 6.79 
- For govt. funds for onward disbursement as grant 78.64 170.63 

• Earmarked Terro Deposits 

- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.62 0.62 
- Term Deposit- Debenture Redemption Reserves 67.01 196,35 

- Balances with banks not available for use pending 530.44 1,720.36 
allotment of 54EC Capital Gain Tax fu(emption Bonds 

..Qther Term deposits 216.14 252.16 

Total 899.97 2,346.91 

- Term Deposits with remaining maturity more than 3 216.14 181.30 
months but less than 12 months 

- Term Deposits with Original maturity more than 12 70,86 

months 

8 Trade Receivables 

. (t in Crores 
Particulars As at 31·12·2023 As at 31-03-2023 

(M Unserured, Considered good 151.09 128.73 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 2.57 (25.67) 
153.66 103.06 

(B) Trade receivables which have Significant increse in credit risk 37.62 37.62 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (28.07) (28.07) 
9.55 9,55 

(0 Credit impaired receivables 56.35 56.35 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (55.96) (55.96) 
0.39 0.39 

Total Trade Receivables (A+B+C) 163,60 113.00 



9 Derivative Financial Instruments 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held for risk management 

purposes include hedges that are either designated as effective hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic 
hedges. The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional 
amounts. 

Part I 

(~ in Crores) 
Particulars As aI31·12·2023 As aI3HJ3·2023 

Notional Fair Value- Fair Value- Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-
Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 

Currency Derivatives 

- Currency swaps 3,116.87 56.29 90.27 3,083.13 47.50 58.13 
- Others 

• Can Spread 2,077.91 268.10 1.81 2,055.42 208.14 . 

- Seagull Options 1,09,094.16 10,229.06 784.57 80,362.47 8,007.42 87.89 
Sub·lolal (i) 1,14,288.94 10,553.45 876.65 85,501.02 8,263.06 146.02 
Interest Rate Derivatives 
- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 71,171.78 787.42 635.16 46,278.27 718.55 300.82 
Sub-total (ii) 71,171.78 787.42 635.16 46,278.27 718.55 300.82 
Other derivatives 
- Reverse cross currency swaps . . . 4,947.00 . 530.11 
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i + ii+iii) 1,85,460.72 11,340.87 1,511.81 1,36,726.29 8,981.61 976.95 

Part II 
Included in Part I are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below: 

(~in Crores 
Particulars As al 31-12·2023 As al 31"()3·2023 

Notional Fair Value - Fair Value- Notional Fair Value- Fair Value -

Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 
Fair Value Hedging 
- Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 15,950.70 45.16 232.47 15,950.70 10.32 289.34 

Sub-total (i) 15,950.70 45.16 232.47 15,950.70 10.32 289.34 

Cash Flow Hedging 

- Currency Derivatives 
- Currency Swaps 3,116.87 56.29 . 3,083.13 38.85 . 

~ Call Spread 2,077.91 268.10 1.81 2,055.42 208.14 . 
~ Seagull Options 1,09,094.16 10,155.87 784.57 80,362.47 7,979.02 85.76 

- Interest Rate Derivatives 
- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 48,521.08 395.07 402.69 23,627.57 337.69 11.48 

Sub-total (ii) 1,62,810.02 10,875.33 1,189.07 1,09,128.59 8,563.70 97.24 

Undesignated Derivatives 6,700.00 420.38 90.27 11,647.00 407.59 590.37 

Total-. Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii+iii) 1,85,460.72 11,340.87 1,511.81 1,36,726.29 8,981.61 976.95 

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The changes in the fair value of derivatives deSignated as 

hedging instruments in effective cash flow hedges are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. In case of fair value hedges, the changes 

in fair value of the derivatives deSignated as hedging instruments along with the fair value changes in the carrying amount of the hedged 

items are recognised in the Statment of Profit & Loss. For undesignated derivatives, the changes in the fair value are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit & Loss. 



10 Loans 
The Company has categorised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd AS 109. 

(A) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 
(iii) 

(C)(I 

(i) 

(ti) 

(C)(I 

Particulars 

Loans 

Term Loans 

Working Capital Tenn Loans 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Security Details 

Secured by tangible assets 
Covered by Govt. Guarantees 

Unsecured 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

~ Loans in India 

Public Sector 
Private Sector 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

[) Loans outside India 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total (A) - Gross Loans 

Total (A) - Net Loans 

Total (B) w Gross Loans 

Total (B) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(I) - Gross Loans 

Total (C)(I) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(II) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(I) and (C)(II) 

As at 31-12-2023 

Principal O/s Amortised Cost 

4,54,412.01 4,56,985.11 

43,053.62 43,371.15 

4,97,465.63 5,00,356.26 

(13,104.63) (13,104.63) 

4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

2,40,712.45 2,41,555.33 

2,20,824.95 2,22,710.05 

35,928.23 36,090.88 

4,97,465.63 5,00,356.26 

(13,104.63) (13,104.63) 

4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

4,50,031.38 4,52,970.68 

47,434.25 47,385.58 

4,97,465.63 5,00,356.26 

(13,104.63) (13,104.63) 

4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

- -
- -
- -

4,84,361.00 4,87,251.63 

(t in Crores) -
As at 31-03-2023 

PrincipalO/s Amortised Co.t 

4,08,463.40 4,09,638.42 

26,548.39 26,709.24 

4,35,011.79 4,36,347.66 

(14,263.75) (14,263.75) 

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 

2,42,310.94 2,42,633.17 

1,72,069.58 1,73,004.21 

20,631.27 20,710.28 

4,35,011.79 4,36,347.66 

(14,263.75) (14,263.75) 

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 

3,93,225.23 3,94,571.78 

41,786.56 41,775.88 

4,35,011.79 4,36,347.66 

(14,263.75) (14,263.75) 

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 

- -
- -
- -

4,20,748.04 4,22,083.91 



11 Invesbnents 

(~ in Crores) 
Particulars Amortised Cost At fair value Sub·total Others (At Cost) Total 

Through Other Through profit Designated at 
Comprehensive or loss fair value 

Income through profit or 

loss 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5= 1+2+3+4) (6) (7- 5.,;) 

As at 31st December, 2023 

Govt. Securities 1,618.22 - - - 1,618.22 - 1,618.22 
Debt Securities 1,237.98 - 1,068.98 2,306.96 - 2,306.96 
Equity Instruments - 422.06 83.31 - 505.37 - 505.37 
Preference Shares 28.72 - - - 25.72 25.72 
Total ~ Gross (A) 2,884.92 422.06 1,152.29 - 4,459.27 - 4,459.27 
Investments outside India - - - - - - -
Investments in India 2,884.92 422.06 1,152.29 - 4,459.27 - 4,459.27 
Total ~ Gross (B) 2,884.92 422.06 1,152.29 · 4,459.27 · 4,459.27 

Total Investments 2,884.92 422.06 1,152.29 4,459.27 - 4,459.27 

Less: impairment 1085 allowance (C) (25.72) - - · (25.72) · (28.72) 
Total ~ Net (D=A~C) 2,856.20 422.06 1,152.29 · 4,430.55 · 4,43055 

As at 31st March, 2023 

Govt. Securities 1,431.74 - - 1,431.74 - 1,431.74 

Debt Securities 766.90 562.34 - 1,329.24 - 1,329.24 

Equity Instruments - 381.71 27.31 - 409.02 - 409.02 

Preference Shares 28.72 - - 28.72 - 28.72 

Total - Gross (A) 2,227.36 381.71 589.65 - 3,198.72 · 3,198.72 

Investments outside India - - · - - -
Investments in India 2,'227.36 381.71 589.65 - 3,198.72 - 3,198.72 

Total - Gross (B) 2,227.36 381.71 589.65 · 3,198.72 · 3,198.72 

Total Investments 2,227.36 381.71 589.65 - 3,198.72 · 3,198.72 

Less: impairment loss allowance tC) (28.72) . - · (28.72) · (28.72) 

Total - Net (D=A-c) ~,.19.8.64 381.71 589.65 · 3,170.00 · 3,170.00 



12 Other financial assets 

The Company has categorised all the components under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(A) 

(B) 

(e) 

(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Loans to Employees 

Advances to Employees 

Loans & Advances to Ultimate Holding Company 

Security Deposits 

Advance paid towards variation margin 

Recoverable from Govt. of India 

Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 

Other amounts recoverable 

Less: Impairment Loss allowance 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 

13 Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 
Advance Income-tax & TDS 

Less: Provision for Income Tax 

Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand under contest 

Current tax assets (Net) 

14 Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

As at 31-12-2023 

Total (A to G) 

As at 31-12-2023 

Sub-Total (1) 

Sub-Total (2) 

As at 31-12-2023 

(~ in Crores 
As at 31-03-2023 

59.91 44.56 
0.89 0.49 
3.52 3.54 

1.53 1.52 

8.28 

24,652.42 24,318.29 
297.23 149.35 
(87.75) (95.21) 

209.48 54.14 
24,936.03 24,422.54 

(~ in Crores 
As at 31-03-2023 

5,414.56 2,956.82 

(5,061.93) (2,655.88) 

352.63 300.94 
5.26 5.26 

(0.25) (0.25) 

5.01 5.01 
357.64 305.95 

(~in Crares 
As at 31..()3-2023 

3,118.43 3,301.56 



15 Property, Plant &: Equipment and Inlangibl~ Asutll 

Particulars 

Fl'Iltitold land 

Gross carrying value 

As at 31.03.2022 

Additions 

BOtTOwings Cost Capitalised 

Disposals 

As at 31.12.2022 

As at 31.Q3.2023 

Additions 

BOtTOwings Cost Capitalised 

Dispo&al~ Adjustments 

As at 31.12.2023 

Accwnulated depreciatiDnl amortisation 

As at31.Q3.2022 

Charge for the period 
Adjustment for disposals 

As at 31.l2.2022 

As at 31.Q3.2023 

Charge for the period 

Adjustmenl for diliposals 

As aI31.12.2023 

N~t block as at 31.03.2023 

Net block all at 31.12.2023 

r;;;and Jail) . 

(,;; 01\ ~
<f0 

.C;., 0" .. \ l\ i.9.2 ~N ,\" /~". '.\ /.0..,-v 
---~~ :)0:~ 

-'';".;-' .c.-

110.39 

110.39 

110.39 

110.39 

110.39 

110.39 

Right..,{.U", Land Buildinp >'bn,' 
equipma'lt 

.. , 430.83 

1.5' "0.83 

1.5' 456.90 

I.., 456.90 

037 13.51 

0.01 5.16 

03' 18.67 

03' 20.61 

0.01 5.41 

(0.01) 

0.41 26.02. 

1.20 436.29 

1.18 "US 

\(m\,.roreSJ 

C~l'itd Work-m- Intangible Anet8 Other Intangibl~ 

Property, Plant &: Equipment 
,.",.... =,~ ...... 

D~lopn>tnt 

Fumitan!6: EDPEquipmatts 0_ Vdticl,... ToW , ....... " COlIlputer Computer , ...... Equil'D'lmts - So ..... So"~ 

19.90 67.75 26.71 24.14 0.40 681.71 •. " 1<81 
0.16 2.30 4.09 5.23 0.03 11.81 0.1 0.01 

0.98 1.<2 1.73 4.13 

20.06 69.07 "'" 27.64 0." 689.39 • .88 14.82 

20.06 " .. 26.5. 25.50 0.54 709.25 <72 14.72 

0.36 1.71 7.40 5.30 0.16 14.93 3.72 

0.32 

1.59 2.18 4.41 0.01 8.19 

20.42 67.80 31.80 2639 0.69 715." 6.76 1<72 

0.95 10.94 19.22 l2.31 037 57.67 10.52 

0.% 4.50 2.65 2.49 0.02 15.79 2.19 

0.27 1.11 1.02 0.01 2.41 

W 15.17 20.76 13.78 0'" 71.05 1271 

2.23 15.70 18.70 1206 038 70.07 13.09 

0.97 4.59 3.25 2.72 0.02 16.97 1.01 

0.56 1.51 2.28 (0.01) • .33 

3.20 19.73 :W.44 12.50 0.41 82.71 14.10 

17.83 51.98 7 .. 13.44 0.16 639.17 <72 1.63 

17.22 48" 11.36 13.89 0.28 633.27 6.76 0., 



16 Other non-financial assets 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Capital Advances 

Other Advances 

Balances with Govt. Authorities 

Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 

Prepaid Expenses 

Deferred Employee Cost 
Other Assets 

17 Assets classified as held for sale 

Particulars 
(A) Disposal Group 

(i) Invesbnent in associates 

(ii) Loans to associates 

(iii) Provision for impairment on assets classified as held for sale 
Sub-Total (i+ii+iii) 

(8) Assets Oassified as Held for Sale-Building 

Total (8) 
Grand Total (A+B) 
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 

(e) Payable to associates 

Tota1(C) 

Net Assets held for sale (A+B-O 

18 Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Trade Payables 

Total outstanding dues of MSMEs 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 

Total 

Total (A to G) 

(~ in Crores 
As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

6.80 7.26 
76.21 4.50 
53.06 30.81 

· 7.70 
29.67 13.28 
15.09 10.84 
0.01 0.01 

180.84 74.40 

(~in Crares) 
As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

1.05 0.65 
9.94 13.39 
· (9.73) 

10.99 4.31 
0.05 0.34 
0.05 0.34 

11.04 4.65 

0.02 

· 0.02 
11.04 4.63 

(~in Crores 
As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

61.08 41.68 

61.08 41.68 



19 Debt Securities 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(C) 

(i) 

(i) 

(il) 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(~in Crores 
Particulars As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost 
Secured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,955.00 2,001.40 1,955.00 2,029.81 
54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 40,601.45 41,574.53 35,866.55 37,124.32 
Tax Free Bonds 9,372.58 9,519.74 10,261.64 10,624.41 
Bond Application Money pending allotment 530.44 527.52 1,720.36 1,719.42 
Sub-total (A) 52,459.47 53,623.19 49,803.55 51,497.96 
Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,69,675.29 1,75,770.44 1,48,262.70 1,52,705.20 
Infrastructure Bonds 3.96 9.22 3.96 8.63 
Foreign Currency Bonds 29,506.33 29,411.43 32,886.78 32,690.54 
Sub-total (B) 1,99,185.58 2,05,191.09 1,81,153.44 1,85,404.37 
Unsecured Short-Term Debt Securities 

Commercial Paper 2,985.00 2,949.84 - . 

Sub-total (e) 2,985.00 2,949.84 - -
Total - Debt Securities (A+B+C) 2.54630.05 261764.12 2,30956.99 236902.33 
Debt Securities issued in! outside India 
Debt Securities in India 2,25,123.72 2,32,352.69 1,98,070.21 2,04,211.79 
Debt Securities outside India 29,506.33 29,411.43 32,886.78 32,690.54 

Total- Debt Securities 2,54,630.05 2,61,764.12 2,30,956.99 236,902.33 

20 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

(A) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(8) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(Ui) 

(i) 

(ti) 

The Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind 

AS 109. 

(~in Crores 
Particulars As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

Principal Ols Amortised Cost Principal O/s Amortised Cost 

Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings 

Term Loans from Banks 55,204.27 55,422.60 56,298.20 56,402.09 

Term Loans from Financial Institutions 11,300.00 11,322.89 6,000.00 6,000.64 

Term Loan in Foreign Currency 62,121.12 61,948.67 45,553.26 45,263.52 

Tenn Loans from Govt. of India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10,122.31 10,000.00 10,325.12 

Lease Liability . - 0.02 0.02 
Sub-total (A) 1,38,625.39 1,38,816.47 1,17,851.48 1,17,991.39 

Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings 

FCNR (B) Loans 24,423.45 24,434.97 15,424.22 15,427.63 

Short Tenn Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 10,680.50 10,700.20 3,600.00 3,607.52 
Overdrafts/ Cash Credit repayable on demand from Banks - - 87.59 87.59 
Sub-total (B) 35,103.95 35,135.17 19,111.81 19,122.74 

Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) (A to B) 1,73,729.34 1,73,951.64 1,3&,963.29 1,37,114.13 

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) in! outside India 

Borrowings in India 1,11,608.22 1,12,002.97 91,410.03 91,850.61 

Borrowings outside India 62,121.12 61,948.67 45,553.26 45,263.52 

Total ~ Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 1,73,729.34 1,73,951.64 1,36,963.29 1,37,114.13 



21 Subordinated Liabilities 

The Company has categorised all subordinated liabilities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(i) 

(ti) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ti) 

Particulars 

115th Series· Subordinate Tier-II Bonds -

8.06% Redeemable at par on 31.05.2023 
175th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds-
8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 
199th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds -

7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030 
Total- Subordinated Liabilities 

Subordinated Liabilities inl outside India 

Borrowings in India 
Borrowings outside India 
Total- Subordinated Liabilities 

As .131-12-2023 

Face Value Amortised Cost 

- -

2,151.20 2,276.87 

1,999.50 2,036.02 

4,150.70 4,312.89 

4,150.70 4,312.89 

- -

4,150.70 4,312.89 

(t in Crores) 
As at 31-03-2023 

Face Value Amortised Cost 

2,500.00 2,668.34 

2,151.20 2,079.90 

1,999.50 2,025.06 

6,650.70 6,773.30 

6,650.70 6,773.30 
- -

6,650.70 6,773.30 



22 Other Financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 
(F) 

Particulars 

Unpaid Dividends 

Unpaid Principal & Interest on Bonds 

- Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 

- Interest on Bonds 
Sub-Iolal (B) 

Advance received towards variation margin 

Funds Received from Govt. of India for Disbursement as 
Add: Inleresl on such funds (nel of refund) 

Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy! Grant 

Payables lowards Bonds Fully serviced by Gov!. of India 
Other Liabilities 

Tolal (A 10 F) 

23 Currenllax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 
Provision for Income Tax 

Less: Advance Income-tax & IDS 

Currenllax liabilities (Nel) 

24 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions for 
(A) Employee Benefils 

Gratuity 

Earned Leave Liability 

Medical Leave Liability 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 

Long Service Award 

Incentive 

Others 
Sub-total (A) 

(8) Others 

Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 
Sub-total (B) 

Total (A+B) 

(~in Crores 
As aI31-12-2023 As aI31-03-2023 

7.12 6.79 

29.01 25.66 
12.56 11.17 
41.57 36.83 

2,203.93 -
98,251.73 98,232.51 

24.67 24.17 
(98,195.40) (98,095.33) 

81.00 161.35 
24,652.42 24,318.29 

614.48 821.85 
27,600.52 25,345.11 

(~ in Crores' 
As aI31-12-2023 As aI31-03-2023 

20.54 (41.27) 

(17.09) 51.92 
3.45 10.65 

(~in Crores 
As aI31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

0.23 2.68 

30.14 27.75 

20.78 20.61 

2.25 1.76 

4.55 4.17 

3.24 2.89 

31.31 33.89 

1.27 2.00 
93.77 95.75 

21.52 15.87 
21.52 15.87 

115.29 111.62 



25 Other Non~Financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Income Received in Advance 

Sundry Liabilities Account (Funded Interest Capitalisation) 

Unbilled Liability towards Capital Account 

Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 

Advance received from Govt. towards Govt. Schemes 

Statutory Dues 

Other Liabilities 
Total (A to G) 

As at 31·12·2023 
(~ in Crores) 

As at 31-03·2023 

0.12 . 

48.15 2.80 
48.38 48.38 

99.23 12.45 
. 0.10 

37.59 42.72 
. . 

233.47 106.45 



26 Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Authorised: 
Equity shares of ~ 10 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up : 

Fully paid up Equity shares of ~ 10 each 

Total 

27 Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Particulars 

Fully paid up Perpetual Debts Instrument entirely equity in nature of ~ 10 lakhs each 

Total 

28 Other Equity 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(B) 

(C) 

Particulars 

Other Reserves 

Special Reserve created ufs 36(1) (viii) of the Income Tax Aci, 1961 

Reserve for Bad and doubtful debts u/s 36(1)(viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

Statutory Reserve uls 4S-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Securities Premium 

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account 

General Reserve 

Retained Earnings 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

- Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 

- Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 

- Cost of Hedging reserve 

Total- Other Equity (A+B+C) 

~ ~r:::)0\\ II r:;/ 0 \, 

! Ie ... I .... Delhi-92 /jJ~~' ., \ /$. 
'>~'W 'n~~r,:;,d Ag..' 

, ;-.=--

\ ~ uo _~~~_~, 

As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 

(~ in Crores) 
As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

Number Amount Number Amount 

5,584 558.40 5,584 558.40 

5,584 558.40 5,584 558.40 

(~in Cro: " 

As at 31-12-2023 As at 31-03-2023 

27,264.72 24,977.89 

504.43 . 
10,026.87 8,025.15 

1,577.53 1,577.53 

(706.41) (790.44) 

12,036.27 12,036.27 

12,728.64 10,313.78 

(59.54) (101.47) 

42.85 600.05 

(1,315.59) (1,709.87) 

62,099,78 54,928.89 I 



29 Interest Income 

(A) 

(j) 

(il) 

(8) 

(j) 

(C) 

(i) 

(D) 

(l) 

(ii) 

«(l) 

(iv) 

(,) 

(vi) 

Particulars 

Interest on Loan Assets 

Long tenn financing 

Short tenn financing 

Interest Income from Invesbnents 

Interest from Long Tenn Investments 

Interest on Deposits with Banks 

Interest from Deposits 

Other Interest Income 

Interest on Delayed Payments by Borrowers 

Interest from Staff Advances 

Interest on Mobilisation Advance 

Unwinding of Discount of Security Deposits 

Interest from SPVs 

Interest on Advance to parties 

Sub-total (A) 

Sub-total (B) 

Sub-total (C) 

Sub-total (0) 

Total- Interest Inoome (A to 0) 

30 Dividend Income 

Particulars 
_ Dividend from Long-Tenn Investments 

Total- Dividend Inoome 

31 Fees and Commission Income 

Particulars 

Fees based Income 

Prepayment Premium 

Fee for Implementation of Govt. Schemes 
Total- Fees and Commission Income 

32 Sale of services 

Particulars 

Consultancy Engineering Services 

Total 

33 Other Income 

Particulars 
Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of assets classified as held for sale 

Rental Income 

Uabilities/Provision Written Back 

Fees from Training Courses 

Miscellaneous Income 
Total - Other Income 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

On Financial On Financial On Financial 

Assets Assets Assets measured 

measured at measured at at Fair Value 

Fair Value Amortised Cost through Profit or 

through OCI r.o .. 

31,654.89 

1,835.37 

33,490.26 -

131.46 45.05 

131.46 45." 

262.04 

- 262.04 -

- 106.54 -
3.87 

0.18 

0.10 

0.44 -
1.34 -

112.47 

33,996.23 45." 

Period ended 31-12-2023 
0.81 

0.81 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

42.48 

46.69 

54.49 

143.66 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

303.06 

303.06 

Period ended 31-12-2023 
1.32 

10.42 

2.46 

10.05 

12.75 

37.00 

(~ in Crores) 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

On Financial On Finandal On Finandal 

Assets measured Assets Dleasured Assets measured 

at Fair Value at Amortised at Fair Value 

throughOCI Cost through Profit or 

Loss 

28,255.29 

201.01 

- 28,456.30 

- 113.20 2157 

113.20 21.57 

85.39 

- 85.39 

168.39 

2.30 

- 0.20 

0.13 

0.41 

- 171.43 -
28,826.32 21.57 

t in Crates 
Period ended 31-12-2022 

9.57 

9.57 

(~. C m rores 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

90.97 

36.44 

25.27 

152.68 

(t in C rores) 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

148.98 
148.98 

(~ in c rores) 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

3.28 

12.81 

1.30 

7.06 

5.88 

30.33 



34 Finance Costs 

Finance Cosls have been incurred on finandalliabilities measured al amortised cost. 

I~ in Crores 
ParticuJars Period ended 31·12·2023 Period ended 31·12.2022 

(i) Interest on Borrowings 

- Loans from Govt. of India (NSSF) 619.69 619.69 
- Loans from Banks/ Financial Institutions 4,084.06 2,753.69 
- External Commercial Borrowings 3,429.14 1,116.88 

Sub· Total 0) 8,132.89 4,490.26 

(ii) Interest on Debt Securities 

- Domestic Debt Securities 11,193.91 9,885.28 
- Foreign Currency Debt Securities 1,209.50 1,073.41 
- Commercial Paper 100.47 

Sub-Total ill) 12,503.88 10,958,69 
(iii) Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 

- Subordinate Bonds 335.71 404.63 
Sub-Total (iii) 335.71 404.63 

(iv) Other Interest Exp ense 

- Swap Premium 1,026.43 1,379.18 
- Interest on Variation Margin 55.51 
-Interest on Advance Income Tax 1.48 
-Interest on liability towards employee benefits '.66 4.22 
- Miscellaneous interest expense 0.11 0.13 

Sub-Total (iv) 1,079,87 1,383.53 
Total- Finance Costs 22,052.35 17,237.11 

Less: Finance Costs Capitalised (0.32) 

Total- Finance Costs (Net) 22,052.03 17,237.11 

35 Net tnnslationl transaction exchange loss! (gain) 

(~. C on rores) 
Particulars Period ended 31-12·2023 Period ended 31·12-2022 

Net translation! transaction exchange loss/ (gain) 106.62 1,144.25 

Total 106.62 1,144.25 

" The figures above mclude amortIsatIOn of net translatzon! transactIOn exchange 10ss1 (gllm) on Long Term ForeIgn Currency Monetary Items recognised In the fi anClal statements before 1st Aprrl 

2018 amounting to (196.28 crores (Previous year (67.08 crores). 

36 Fees and commission expense 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(.) 

Particulars 

Guarantee Fee 

Listing and Trusteeship Fee 

Agency Fees 

Credit Rating Expenses 

Other Finance Charges 

31 Net Gain! (loss) on Fair Value Changes 

Particulars 

Total (i to v) 

(A) Net gain! (lOllS) on financial instruments at Fair Value through profit 

(i) 

(ii) 

011088 

On trading Portfolio 

Others 
- Changes in fair value of Derivatives 

- Changes in fair value of Long Tenn Investments 

- Changes in fair value of Short-tenn MF investments 
Sub-total (iii 

Total (A) 

Breakup of Fair Value Changes 

- RealJsed 
- Unrealised 

Total Net Gain! (loss) on Fair Value Changes 

Period ended 31·12-2023 

Period ended 31·12-2023 

m rores 
Period ended 31·12-2022 

1.28 2.19 

0.04 0.05 

0.96 0.91 

3.01 2.67 

10.09 &5' 
15.38 11,35 

(~in Crores 
Period ended 31·12·2022 

283.46 91.15 

53.27 (15.36) 

2.03 0.29 

338,76 76.08 
338,76 76.08 

629.80 94.54 
(291.04) (18.46) 

338.76 76.08 

Farr value cJumges IN thIS schedule are other than loose amlng on account of accrued mteresl INcome/ expense and represents changes m faIr value of derivatIves deSIgnated as economIc hedges not 

designated under hedge accounting and ineffective hedge 

'O"dJ;i~ 

~.I.~~QB\~i-~~Y··I 
.. / 'c·1 , . CA ___ / .)"::'~/j 

"'~/"I,~,.~,{.J,.~,~~: ' 



38 Impairment on financial instruments 

Particulars Period ended 31·]2·2023 

On financial instruments measured On financial instruments 

0) 

(il) 

. Loans" 

-Othon; 

at FVOCI 

Total (i+ii) 

measwed at Amortised Cost 

(653.47) 

7.55 

- (645.92) .-Includes? 5.63 crares (PrevIOus perIOd? -0.61 cmres) towards lmpalnnent allowance on Letter a/Comfort 

39 Cost of services rendered 

Particulars Period ended 31·12·2023 

Project Expenses 

Total 

40 Employee Benefits Expense 

Particulars Period ended 31·12·2023 

. Salaries and Allowances 

- Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 

- Rent towards Residential Accomodation for Employees 

- Staff Welfare Expenses 

Total 

41 Depreciation and amortization 

Particulars Period ended 31·12·2023 

- Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 

- Amortization on Intangible Assets 

Total 

42 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-2023 

- Direct Expenditure 

-Overheads 
Total 

(~in Crates) 
Period ended 31-12.2022 

On financial instruments On financial instruments 
measured at FVOCI :measured at Amortised Cost 

- 42955 

- 22.40 

- 451.95 

(~ in Crores) 
Period ended 31·12·2022 

174.03 31.56 

174.03 31.56 

(t· C on rOTes 
Period ended 31·12·2022 

113.19 132.05 

24.04 13.56 

4.70 3.96 

30.03 25.29 

171.% 174.86 

(t· C on rores 

Period ended 31·12·2022 

16.% 15.79 

1.01 2.19 

17.97 17.98 

(t in CraTes) 

Period ended 31·12·2022 

127.32 110.87 

5.61 4.97 

132.93 115.84 



43 Other Expenses 

(~ in Crores 
Particulars period ended 31·12·2023 Period ended 31·12·2022 
· Travelling and Conveyance 14.84 11.88 
- Publicity &: Promotion Expenses 13.26 5.26 
- Repairs and Maintenance 19.43 14.33 
- Rent, taxes and energy costs 6.94 5.87 
- Insurance Charges 0.16 0.14 
- Communication costs 1.83 1.86 
- Printing &: stationery 1.11 0.92 
- Director's Sitting fees 0.39 0.29 
• Auditors' fees and expenses 1.42 0.81 
- Legal &: Professional Otarges 9.28 10.44 
- Net Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant &: Equipment 3.78 1.66 
• Training And Conference Expense 12.37 6.93 
- Govt. Scheme Monitoring Expenses 4.24 7.92 
- Other Expenditure 20.06 15.88 

Total 109.11 84,19 

44 Tax Expense 

(~. C m rores 
Parikuiars Period ended 31«12-2023 Period ended 31-12-2022 

• Current tax expense 2,425.39 1,976.96 

• Current tax expensel (benefit) pertaining to earlier years 1.60 (147.29) 

Su~total· Current Tax 2,426.99 1,829.67 

· Deferred tax expensel (credit) 237.10 65.16 
Total 2,664,09 1,894.83 

45 Earnings per Share 

Particulars Period ended 31«12-2023 Period ended 31-12.2022 

~ 
Profit for the year from continuing operations as per Statement of Profit 10,066.37 8,101.61 

and Loss (~in Crores)· 

Profit for the period from discontinued operations as per Statement of 

Profit and Loss (~ in Crores)· 

Profit for the year from continuing and discontinued operations as per 10,066.37 8,101.61 

Statement of Profit and Loss (~in Crorest 

Denominator 

Weighted average Number of equity shares~· 2,63,32,24,000 2,63,32,24,000 

Basic &: Diluted Earnings per Share (in ~ for an equity share of ~ 10 each) 38.23 30.77 

(for continuing operations) 

Basic &: Diluted Earnings per Share (in ~ for an equity share of ~ 10 each) 

(for discontinued operab'ons) 

Basic &: Diluted Earnings per Share (in ~ for an equity share of ~ 10 each) 

for continuimr: and discontinued operations) 38.23 30.77 

• The profit denotes Proft after Tax less CQupan expenses (llet of taxes) of ~ 0 crares (PrevIOus penod ~ 0 crares) on Perpetual Debt Instruments enfnreiy eqrllfy In nature. 



Annexure-2 

Details of sale and tIansf'er of Subsidiaries 

SI. Particulars -
- -

Details 
No. 

DhalePower Biclar Transmission SibrKhetri Pachora Power Karera Power Isbanallar Power 
Transmission Limited Transmission Transmission Transmission Transmission 
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited 

I. The amount Negligible. 
and percentage 

Negligible. Negligible. Negligible. Negligible. Negligible. 

of the turnover 
or revenue or 
income and net 
worth 
contributed by 
such unit or 
division of the 
listed entity 
during the last 
financial year. 

2. Date on which The process for sale The process for sale The process for sale The process for sale The process for sale The process for sale 
the agreement and transfer of the and transfer of the and transfer of the and transfer of the and transfer of the and transfer of the 
for sale has said SPY to the said SPY to the said Spy to the said SPY to the said SPY to the said SPY to the 
been entered successful biddeI{s) successful bidder{s) successful bidder{s) successful biddeI{s) successful biddeI{s) successful biddeI{s) 
into. is expected to is expected to is expected to is expected to is expected to is expected to 

3. The expected complete during the complete during the complete during the complete during the complete during the complete during the 
date of financial year 2023- financial year 2023- financial year 2023- financial year 2023- financial year 2023- financial year 2023-
completion of 24. 24. 24. 24. 24. 24. 
sale/ disposal. 

4. Consideration Consideration Consideration Consideration Consideration Consideration Consideration 
received from comprises comprises comprises comprises comprises comprises 

such professional fee @ professional fee @ professional fee @ professional fee @ professional fee @ professional fee @ 

sale/ disposal. I % of project cost & I % of project cost & I % of project cost & I % of project cost & I % of project cost & I % of project cost & 
reimbursement of reimbursement of reimbursement of reimbursement of reimbursement of reimbursement of 
expenses. expenses. expenses. expenses. expenses. expenses. 



5. 

6. 

7. 

Brief details of 
buyer and 
whether the 

Name of the SPY: 
Dh"e Power 
Trausmission 
Limited 

Name of the SPY: Name of the SPY: 
Biclar Tran.<mimon 
Limited 

SibrKhetri 
Tran.<mission 
Limited 

Bidder: I Name of 
Grid Successful Bidder: 

Grid 

Name of the SPY: 
Pubora Power 
Transmission 
Limited 

Name of 
Successful Bidder: 
GR Infraprojeas 

buyers belong 
to the 
promoter/ 
promoter 
group/ group 
companies. If 
yes, details 
thereof. 

Name of Successful 
Bidder: Indigrid 2 
Limited and 
Indigrid 1 Limited 

Name of 
Successful 
Power 
Corporation 
India Limited 

of l Power 
Corporation 
India Limited 

of l Limited 

Whether the 
transaction 
would fall 
within related 
party 
transactions? If 
yes, whether 
the same is 
done at "arm's 
length". 

It is pertinent to It is pertinent to 
mention that the mention that the 
successful Bidder successful Bidder 
mentioned above, mentioned above, 
does not belong to does not belong to 
Promoter and Promoter and 
Promoter group. Promoter group. 

The transaction does 
not fall within the 
purview of related 
party transaction. 

The transaction 
does not fall within 
the purview of 
related party 
transaction. 

whether the I Not Applicable Not Applicable 
sale, lease or 
disposal of the 
undertaking is 
outside 
Scheme of 
Arr<Utgement? 

It is pertinent to 
mention that the 
successful Bidder 
mentioned above, 
does not belong to 
Promoter and 
Promoter group. 

The transaction 
does not fall within 
the purview of 
related party 
transaction. 

Not Applicable 

It is pertinent to 
mention that the 
successful Bidder 
mentioned above, 
does not belong to 
Promoter and 
Promoter group. 

The transaction 
does not fall within 
the purview of 
related party 
transaction. 

Not Applicable 

Name of the SPY: 
Karera Power 
Transmission 
Limited 

Name of 
Successful Bidder: 
Apraava EJIelKY 
Private Limited 

It is pertinent to 
mention that the 
successful Bidder 
mentioned above, 
does not belong to 
Promoter and 
Promoter group. 

The transaction 
does not fall within 
the purview of 
related party 
transaction. 

Not Applicable 

Name of the SPY: 
Isbanasar Power 
Transmission 
Limited 

Name of 
Successful Bidder: 
Indigrid 2 Limited 
and Indigrid 1 
Limited 

It is pertinent to 
mention that the 
successful Bidder 
mentioned above, 
does not belong to 
Promoter and 
Promoter group. 

The transaction 
does not fall within 
the purview of 
related party 
transaction. 

Not Applicable 



8. 

If yes, details of 
the same 
including 
compliance 
with regulation 
37A of LODR 
Regulations. 
Whether the 
transaction is in 
the nature of 
Slump Sale. 

The proposal for 
sale and transfer of 
Dhule Power 
Transmission 
Limited, to the 
successful bidder as 
per details given in 
Point no. 5 above, is 
not in the nature of 
slump sale. 

Further, the 
consideration for 
sale & transfer of 
SPY s is determined 
in accordance with 
the Guidelines 
issued, from time to 
time, by the 
Ministry of Power, 
Government of 
India. 

The proposal for 
sale and transfer of 
Bidar Transmission 
Limited, to the 
successful bidder as 
per details given in 
Point no. 5 above, is 
not in the nature of 
slump sale. 

Further, the 
consideration for 
sale & transfer of 
Spy s is determined 
in accordance with 
the Guidelines 
issued, from time to 
time, by the 
Ministry of Power, 
Government of 
India. 

The proposal for 
sale and transfer of 
Sikar Khetri 
Transmission 
Limited, to the 
successful bidder as 
per details given in 
Point no. 5 above, is 
not in the nature of 
slump sale. 

Further, the 
consideration for 
sale & transfer of 
SPYs is determined 
in accordance with 
the Guidelines 
issued, from time to 
time, by the 
Ministry of Power, 
Government of 
India. 

The proposal for 
sale and transfer of 
Pachora Power 
Transmission 
Limited, to the 
successful bidder as 
per details given in 
Point no. 5 above, is 
not in the nature of 
slump sale. 

Further, the 
consideration for 
sale & transfer of 
SPYs is determined 
in accordance with 
the Guidelines 
issued, from time to 
time, by the 
Ministry of Power, 
Government of 
India. 

The proposal for 
sale and transfer of 
Karera Power 
Transmission 
Limited, to the 
successful bidder as 
per details given in 
Point no. 5 above, is 
not in the nature of 
slump sale. 

Further, the 
consideration for 
sale & transfer of 
SPY s is determined 
in accordance with 
the Guidelines 
issued, from time to 
time, by the 
Ministry of Power, 
Government of 
India. 

The proposal for 
sale and transfer of 
Ishanag;lr Power 
Transmission 
Limited, to the 
successful bidder as 
per details given in 
Point no. 5 above, is 
not in the nature of 
slump sale. 
Further, the 
consideration for 
sale & transfer of 
SPY s is determined 
in accordance with 
the Guidelines 
issued, from time to 
time, by the 
Ministry of Power, 
Government of 
India. 
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